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Our Mission lable of
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Therefore at Derrimon: 127 Form of Proxy
. We inspire trust.

. We keep it simple.

. We are open and inclusive.

. We tell it like it is.

. We lead from the head and the heart.
. We discuss. We decide. We deliver.
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Chairman’s
Report

The Derrimon Group of Companies built on the
momentum gained in 2019 and continued with
its strategic plan in 2020. What could not have
been foreseen however, was the COVID-19 global
pandemic. This pandemic affected everyone's life
and “normal”, as we know it would change in the blink
of an eye.

During this unprecedented event, the Group
embarked on implementing measures to safeguard
staff members as best as possible and also outlined
contingency plans for the continued operation
should we experience any massive outbreaks across
the enterprise. | take this opportunity to firstly applaud
the efforts of all our valuable staff to adhere to these
measures as well as their steadfast drive to serve our
customers during this challenging period.

Notwithstanding this extraordinary event, the Group
was still able to achieve various successes Across
the enterprise. The Group produced strong financial
results as we achieved new records in revenue and
net profit of $12.7 billion and $311.1 million respectively.

During the period we were also able to finalize the
moving of our Distribution Centre to Ferry Pen (the
Distribution Division of the Group). This new facility has
helped us to improve our efficiency and also provided
much-needed floor space to keep pace with the
rapid portfolio expansion. Our Retail Division, which
comprises Sampars & Select Grocers continued to
do well and were particularly instrumental in serving
customers during lockdown periods because of the
pandemic. We are particularly elated with the fact
that our online store, shopsampars.com, was able
to withstand the voluminous orders which were
submitted during thistime. Ourteam membersworked
tirelessly beyond midnight on several occasions to
ensure that we could fulfil our customers’ orders.
Caribbean Flavours and Fragrances also played
an integral part in supplying our customers during
this challenging period and used the opportunity to
launch sanitization products. This proved to be very
useful to businesses who wanted a bulk sanitizer
product quickly in order to assist with safeguarding
their establishment. Woodcats commenced its
automation and retooling programme and it is
anticipated that this investment will yield significant
efficiencies for the business going forward.

The upcoming year will undoubtedly pose its own
set of challenges but we will still have to balance the
reality of operating in a pandemic while executing our
strategic plan. We are dedicated to implementing
our Derrimon 2.0 plan which will see the Group
ascend to new heights. The Group will continue to
grow organically as well as through mergers and
acquisitions. The leadership and supporting team
members are highly motivated and excited about
this new journey and look forward to collaborating
with all our stakeholders to convert our ambitious
plans into fruition.

Regards,
Derrick Cotterell
Chairmain and Group Chief Executive Officer

The Group produced
strong financial results
as we achieved new
records in revenue and
net profit of $12.7 billion
and $311.1 million
respectively.
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Notice of Annual
General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General

Meeting of DERRIMON TRADING COMPANY LIMITED (the

“Company”) will be held on October 27, 2021 at 10:00
a.m. at The Knutsford Court Hotel to consider, and if
thought fit, to pass the following resolutions: -

Ordinary Business: Resolutions 1 -4

1. To receive the audited accounts for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Resolution 1 — Audited Accounts

“THAT the audited accounts for the year ended 31
December 2020 together with the reports of the
directors and auditors thereon be and are hereby
adopted.”

2. To elect directors

The Directors retiring by rotation pursuant to the
Articles of Incorporation are Derrick Cotterell, Earl
Richards, and Alexander Williams who being eligible
offer themselves for re-election.

Resolution 2a — Re-appointment of Derrick
Cotterell

“THAT the retiring Director, Derrick Cotterell be re-
elected a Director of the Company”

Resolution 2b - Re-appointment of Earl Richards
“THAT the retiring Director, Earl Richards be re-
elected a Director of the Company”

Resolution 2c —Re-appointment of Alexander
Williams

“THAT the retiring Director, Alexander Williams be
re-elected a Director of the Company”

3. To fix the remuneration of the directors

Resolution 3 - Directors’ Remuneration

"THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be
and are hereby authorised to fix the remuneration
of the individual directors.”

4. To re-appoint Auditors and fix their
remuneration.

Resolution 4 — Re-appointment of Auditors
“THAT Baker Tilly, Chartered Accountants, having
agreed to continue in office as Auditors of the
Company, be and are hereby re-appointed
Auditors of the Company to hold office until the
next Annual General meeting at a remuneration
to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the
Company.”

Dated the 16th day of August 2021

by Order of the Board

3 ™ -~ : ‘-.-F.:.._-'J-._ﬁ_,—-f
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Monique Cotterell
Company Secretary

Notes:
(1) A member entitled to attend and vote at the

meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote in his place. Such proxy need not be a member

of the Company.

(2) A member must lodge his Proxy Form with the
Secretary at 235 Marcus Garvey Drive, Kingston 1],

Jamaica not less than 48 hours before the Meeting,

but if not so lodged it may be handed to the
Chairman of the Meeting.
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Directors’
Report

-_m-r

-

. "“_}
1'4

The Board of Directors of Derrimon Trading
Company Limited is pleased to submit their
report for the financial year ended December 3],
2020 to our shareholders. Despite experiencing
a pandemic which presented (and continues to
present) many challenges and uncertainties, the
strategies employed to navigate these challenges
ensured that we now have a stronger and more
agile Group of Companies.

The Company was fortunate to keep all its retail
stores open despite staff shortages resulting
from the quarantine measures at specific periods
during the year. Despite this, we are happy to
report that 2020 was another successful year and
demonstrate the strength of our business model
and the successful execution of our strategies. It
was a year of accomplishments. Some of which
were:

» Approval of the Additional Public Share
offering

* Increase in the Authorized Ordinary Share
Capital of the Group

« Appointment and issue of a Mandate to Barita
Investments Limited

» Finalized negotiation for the purchase of two
(2) new businesses located in the United
States of America.

* Negotiated bridge financing to secure these
two (2) acquisitions based in the USA

This report incorporates the results of many of the
activities that have been implemented in 2020
and the consolidated returns from both Woodcats
International Company Limited and Caribbean
Flavours and Fragrances Company Limited.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Statement of Comprehensive Income shows
profit after tax of $225.644 million for the Company
and $311.089 million for the Consolidated Group.
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The Company was
fortunate to keep all its
retail stores open despite
staff shortages resulting
from the quarantine
measures at specific
periods during the year.

The financial results continue to be encouraging
to us as a Board as it indicates growth in many of
the key indicators as well as demonstrates that the
strategies that we continue to implement have borne
positive outcomes and contributed positively to the
bottom line. The stability in revenue recorded in both
the distribution and retail segments of the business,
despite the strict government related measures
taken during the year to combat the pandemic, was
very encouraging. We achieved revenue of $11.650
billion and $12.777 billion for the Company and Group
whilst growing gross profit to $2.167 billion and $2.483
pbillion respectively for Company and Group.

This is commendable and continues to set the pace
for future growth.

Our Board remain proud of the commitment of our
entire team and the steadfast execution of these
strategies within this financial year and look forward
to the improvements in financial gains to be derived
in the future.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company as at December 3],
2020 are:

Derrick F. Cotterell - Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer

Earl A. Richards - Non-Executive Director
Alexander I.E Williams - Non-Executive Director
Paul Buchanan (Jnr) - Non-Executive Director
Winston Thomas - Non-Executive Director

Monique Cotterell - Executive Director/Company
Secretary

lan C. Kelly - Executive Director/Group CFO
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AUDITORS

The auditors of the Company, Baker Tilly of 9 Cardgill
Avenue, Kingston 10, Jamaica, have served as Auditors
during the reporting period. They have indicated their
willingness to serve for the next financial year. Other
auditors will be invited to submit a bid.

We wish to extend our special thanks to all
shareholders and bondholders for the confidence
that you all continue to express in Derrimon Trading
Company Limited. We look forward to a mutually
rewarding relationship for the coming year and
beyond.

We acknowledge and extend our appreciation to the
committed efforts and hard work of the members of
staff and thank our customers, suppliers, consumers
and all other stakeholders for your continued support.

Dated FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Derrick F. Cotterell
Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer

Five-Year
Statistical Highlights

INCOME STATEMENT 2020 J$'000) 2019 (J$'000) 2018 (J$'000) 2017 (J$'000) 2016 (J$'000)
Revenues 12,777,464 12,649,017 9,308,460 6,723,810 6,176,928
Gross Profit 2,482,663 2,278,834 1,691,033 1,335,800 934,479
Total Operating Expenses 1,843,487 1,687,679 1,303,213 1,141,231 739,412
Profit before Taxation 365,189 345,726 281,845 281,796 116,107
Net Profit 311,089 302,708 277,213 281,796 116,107

BALANCE SHEET

2020 (J$ '000)

2019 (J$'000)

2018 (J$ '000)

2017 (J$ '000)

2016 (J$ '000)

Total Assets 7,415,814 5,782,684 4,048,095 2,887,199 2,264,007
Capital 1,603,937 1,333,612 1,218,236 1,033,175 564,468
Total Assets less Current 5,207,693 4,069,001 2,083,974 1,789,492 1,180,062

Liabilities

SELECT RATIOS 2020 (J$'000) 2019 (J$'000) 2018 (J$ '000) 2017 (J$ '000) 2016 (J$ '000)
Gross Profit Margin 19.43% 18.02% 18.18% 19.87% 15.13%
EBITDA Margin 7.64% 6.27% 5.78% 7.49% 3.86%
Current Ratio 2.16 2156 1.53 1.93 1.73
Quick Ratio 1.17 0.98 0.88 1.20 0.90
Debt to Equity 3.12 2.60 1.37 1.01 1.54
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Corporate
Information

REGISTERED OFFICE

Derrimon Trading Company Limited

235 Marcus Garvey Drive, Kingston 11, Jamaica, W.I.
Tel: (876) 937-4897-8,

Tel: (876) 901-3344

Fax: (876) 937-0754

Email: info@derrimon.com

Website: www.derrimon.com

ATTORNEYS-AT-LAW

Alexander Williams & Co.
Unit 6A, Seymour Park, 2 Seymour Avenue,
Kingston 6, Jamaica

AUDITORS

Baker Tilly
14 Ruthven Road,
Kingston 10, Jamaica

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENTS

Jamaica Central Securities Depository
40 Harbour Street,
Kingston, Jamaica W.I.

BANKERS

Bank of Nova Scotia
86 Slipe Road
Kingston 5, Jamaica W.I

National Commercial Bank
37 Duke Street
Kingston Jamaica W.I.

Sagicor Bank
17 Dominica Drive
Kingston 5, Jamaica W.I.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Derrick Cotterell, M.B.A., B.Sc. (Hons)
Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer

Monique Cotterell, B.Sc.
Company Secretary and Group HR Director

lan Kelly, M.Sc., B.Sc. (Hons)
Group Chief Financial Officer and
Divisional Director - Sampars

Non-Executive Directors

Alexander L.E. Williams, LL.B (Hons) C.LE
Earl Richards, CD, M.B.A, BA.Sc.

Winston Thomas, B.Sc.

Paul Buchanan, BAA

Mentor to the Board
Tania Waldron-Gooden, M.B.A., B.Sc.

LIST OF SENIOR OFFICERS

Derrick Cotterell, M.B.A., B.Sc. (Hons)
Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer

Monique Cotterell, B.Sc.
Company Secretary and Group HR Director

lan Kelly, M.Sc., B.Sc. (Hons)
Group Chief Financial Officer and
Divisional Director - Sampars

Craig Robinson, M.B.A,, B.Sc. (Hons)
General Manager - Sampars

Sheldon Simpson, M.B.A,, B.Sc. (Hons)
General Manager - Distribution Division
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SEGMENT LOCATION

SAMPARS MARCUS GARVEY DRIVE

233 Marcus Garvey Drive Kingston 11, Jamaica, W.I.
Tel: (876) 923-8733, Fax: (876) 757-8853

Email: contactus@samparsja.com

Website: www.shopsampars.com

SAMPARS CROSS ROADS
1-3 Retirement Road, Kingston 5
Tel: (876) 960-1309-11

Fax: (876) 960-1312

SAMPARS OUTLET WASHINGTON BOULEVARD
8-10 Brome Close, Kingston 20,

Jamaica, W.I.

Tel: (876) 931-9121-2

Fax: (876) 941-3862

SAMPARS OUTLET - WEST STREET
62 West Street, Kingston,
Jamaica, W.I.

Tel: (876) 967-5403/948-3517

SAMPARS OLD HARBOUR

3 Arscott Drive, Old Harbour, St. Catherine,
Jamaica, W.I.

Tel: (876) 983-0469

Fax: (876) 745-2103

SAMPARS ST. ANN’S BAY

3 Harbour Street, St. Ann’s Bay
St. Ann, Jamaica, W.I.

Tel: (876) 972-8825

Fax: (876) 972-0156

SAMPARS OUTLET - MANDEVILLE

26 Hargreaves Avenue James Warehouse Complex
Mandeville, Manchester Jamaica, W.I.

Tel: (876) 631-1047

Fax: (876) 631-1048

SELECT GROCERS

184 Constant Spring Road, Manor Park Plaza
Kingston 8, Jamaica, W.I.

Tel: (876) 622-9676

Tel: (876) 631-0226
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Corporate
Governance

The Board of Directors of Derrimon Trading Company
Limited continues to be that body that represents
the interests of its owners and provides guidance
to the management whilst ensuring that strategies
are implemented within an agreed framework.
The mandate of the Board of Directors includes
optimizing long-term financial returns, agreeing
on the Company's leveraged position, increasing
market share and market capitalization, lowering
the cost of capital and lowering operating expenses.
Derrimon’s long-term performance and success
is underpinned by its achievement of the highest
standards of corporate governance and corporate
social responsibility; an on-going commitment of this
Board.

The Board’s overarching responsibility is to ensure
that the management of Derrimon Trading Company
Limited and its subsidiaries operate in a manner
that results in increased value in the interests of
all stakeholders. The approval of policies, as well
as the active monitoring and evaluation of the
management practices of the Company, inclusive
of its policies and decision-making processes, and
execution of corporate strategic objectives are done
in order to ensure that the financial trajectory of the
Company is maintained.

Board Functions

Areas of Responsibilities

The Board makes decisions, reviews and approves key
policies and decisions of the Company, in particular:

+ Corporate Governance

« Compliance with laws, regulations and the
Company’s Code of Conduct

« Corporate Citizenship

+ Strategy and operational plans

« Business development, acquisitions and
expansions

« Finance and treasury

« Appointment and removal of directors

+ Remuneration of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors

+ Risk management

« Financial reporting and auditing

« Succession planning for its Executive Chairman
and other Senior Executives

« Technical - supply chain management, sales
and marketing, customer service, trade and retail
sales

+ Industry experience - logistics, distribution,
international trade, foreign exchange leveraging

The Chairman of the Board holds the principal
responsibility of the effective operations and
leadership of the Board, and to seek sufficient
information to make informed decisions in keeping
with the Company's mandate. The Chairman
provides invaluable support to the executive and
senior management teams and ensures that new
Directors receive adequate and appropriate training
and induction into Derrimon Trading Company
Limited.

The Company Secretary ensures that the Board's
processes and procedures are appropriately
followed and supports effective decision-making and
governance in keeping with laws and best practices.
The Secretary is appointed by the Board and may
only be removed by the Board. All Directors have
equal access to the Company Secretary’s advice
and services, and there is no formal procedure for a
Director to obtain independent professional advice in
the course of their duties.

Board members arerequired to commit sufficienttime
to prepare for and to attend meetings of the Board,
and its Committees or Sub-committees. Regular
attendance at the board meetings is mandatory.
Absence from any meeting without advance notice
to the Chairman or via the Secretary is not permitted.
Given the restrictions of Covid-19, the alternate mode
for the holding of committee and board meetings via
digital platforms was engaged in the 2020 financial
year.
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Each Director is required to have an in-depth
knowledge and understanding of all aspects of the
Company'’s business in order to make informed and
objective decisions. The preparation of detailed and
timely reports in relation to the operational activities
of the Company is the responsibility of management,
for review and analysis by Directors. Board members
have complete access to the management team of
the Company through the executive chairman and
are encouraged to keep abreast of all areas of the
Company'’s operations.

Selection and Composition of the Board

Members of the Board are selected based on levels
of expertise in the areas of the Company’s business
and as such are ideally capable to advise and act in
the interests of all stakeholder groups. No new board
members were selected in this financial year.

Size of the Board

As at December 31, 2020, the Board comprised seven
(7) members; three (3) executive directors, including
the executive chairman and four (4) non-executive
directors. We continue to be confident in the Board's
ability and they continue to provide guidance based
on its collective knowledge and expertise and all
that is required to deliberate on the activities and
outcomes of the business as well as new projects
which may arise. The policy direction and best
corporate oversight for Derrimon Trading Company
Limited is guided by the Board. Given the size of
the organization, and the environment in which it
operates, the Board is confident that the complement
of its membership is adequate.

Executive and Non-Executive Directors
The number of executive directors should at no time
exceed 50% of the total number of Board directors.

Conflicts of Interests/Disclosure

All transactions involving the Company’s shares
by any director, must be promptly reported to the
company secretary who is obliged to disclose such
information on a regular basis to the Jamaica
Stock Exchange. This was done and all trading of
the Company’s shares by directors and senior
management were reported to the Jamaica Stock
Exchange during this financial year.

No director should trade in the Company’'s shares
during the period of one (1) month prior to the release
of quarterly financial statements, and in the case of
the audited accounts two (2) months prior to such
release or any such time that the Company has an

embargo on trading. No trading shall occur between
the time a dividend is considered and the time in
which that information is provided to the Jamaica
Stock Exchange.

A director, who has an interest in the Company or
in any transaction with the Company that could
create or appear to create a conflict of interest, must
disclose such interest to the Company. These include:

« Anyinterest in a firm or charity that does
substantial business with the Company

« Any interest in contracts or proposed contracts
with the Company

+ Any interest in securities held by the Company

« Emoluments other than Board fees received from
the Company

+ Loans or guarantees granted by the Company
to/for the director

Disclosures shall be made at the first opportunity
in the next scheduled board meeting in writing and
such disclosure shall be recorded in the minutes of
the board meeting. The director is required to excuse
himself/herself from the board meetings where the
Board is deliberating over any such contract and shall
not vote on any such matter. If a conflict exists and is
unable to be resolved, the director should resign.

Election, Terms, Re-election and Retirement
Election, terms, re-election and retirement of each
board member is conducted in keeping with the
Articles of Incorporation of the Company, with the
exception that each board member is to retire during
the financial year when the directors will reach the
age of 70 years.

Board and Executive Compensation

Compensation of the executive and non-executive
directors reflects the time, commitment and
responsibilities of the role. It consists of a package
appropriate to attract, retain and motivate directors
of the quality required. The compensation is
competitive and subject to review relative to what is
being paid in comparable positions elsewhere. The
Company did not undertake such activity through
the human resources and compensation committee
in 2020 as there was no proposal which required this
committee’s adjudication during this financial period.

Access to External Advisors and Funding

The Company utilizes and relies on the services of
external expertise to make decisions when such
expertise is not available in-house but required.
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The Company will make funds available to the Board
for any such expertise needed, and in particular the
non-executive directors, as is reasonably required
for those directors to objectively make decisions.
This may include providing funds to access external
advisors and to cover costs associated with travel and
gathering of relevant information for the execution of
their responsibilities. During this review, a full review
and update of the Board's policies were done by an
independent board governance specialist and the
following amended documents were presented and
approved:

« Board Charter

+ Audit and Risk Management Policy
+ HR Committee Policy

+ Projects Committee Policy

+ Corporate Governance Policy

Succession Planning
The Board has full responsibility to ensure that the
business is managed well at all times and that
succession plans and potential candidates are
identified for all senior executives, inclusive of the
Executive Chairman.

Should the Executive Chairman or the Chief Financial
Officer demit office due to an emergency, the Board
will convene at the earliest possible time, no more
than two (2) weeks after such an event, with a view
to appoint an interim or permanent successor to that
post.

Code Of Conduct

The Board expects all directors, as well as officers
and employees, to act ethically at all times and to
adhere to all codes and policies that describes the
values and principles of Derrimon Trading Company
Limited, namely;

+ Respect and dignity

+ Trust

«  Communication

« Teamwork and appreciation
+ Professionalism

+ Good Value

« Group pride

Board Committees

The Board has several Committees, each with
clearly defined terms of reference, procedures,
responsibilities and powers.
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Audit and Risk Management Committee
OnbehalfoftheBoard,the Auditand Risk Management
Committee shall:

+ Review the Company’s annual and interim
financial statements and related assumptions,
and any accompanying reports or related
policies and statements

+ Monitor and review the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function

+ Monitor and review the external auditor’s
independence, objectivity and effectiveness

« Develop and implement policy on the
engagement of the external auditor to supply
non-audit services

« Approve the Company’s risk management policy
which defines the Company’s risk appetite and
level of risk tolerance

« Monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company'’s system of risk management and
control

The majority of members of the audit committee
shall consist of non-executive directors of the
Company duly appointed by the Board. The Board
shall also appoint the chairman and secretary of the
audit committee. The Board chairman shall not be
a member of the committee. The committee shall
consist of not less than three (3) members.

The audit committee shall meet at least four (4) times
a year, within forty-five (45) days of the end of each
quarter and at such other times as may be required.

The audit committee shall review all financial
statements and matters, which are of significant
import to the investing public. The full Board will have
responsibility and accountability for the final release
of such information. This committee met five (5) times
during the financial year ended December 31, 2020.

During this financial year, the services of Baker Tilly
was engaged as our external auditors replacing
McKenley and Associates Limited who have served
us with distinction over the years. Baker Tilly has
completed the annual audit and was approved by
the board committee and full board of directors for
uploading to all shareholders on March 1, 2021. The
Company has in its employ, a team with responsibility
to undertake its internal audit functions with a focus
on daily inventory and periodic cash validation, and
all results are reported to the audit committee which
is chaired by Mr. Earl A. Richards.
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Other members of the audit committee includes
Mr. Paul Buchanan Jr. and Mr. lan Kelly. Periodic
invitations are extended to Mr. Otema Thompson,
Group Financial Manager.

Human Resources & Compensation Committee
The Human Resources & Compensation Committee
shall:

+ Review the performance of the executive
directors and the senior executives of the
Company on at least an annual basis

« Report the findings at once per annum ata
regular board meetings and

« Comprise a majority of non-executive directors

There was no meeting of this committee during this
reporting period.

Meetings

Each financial year shall see a minimum of six (6)
regular board meetings. The Board is not beholden,
however, to solely fulfilling the minimum number of
meetings throughout the year and can choose to
meet on a monthly basis as is the current practice.
The Covid-19 pandemic protocols have influenced
the move from face to face meetings to the new
digital platform for meetings of the Board and its
committee. This has become the norm within the
country and was fully adopted by Derrimon Trading
Company Limited's Board for its various meetings.

It is the responsibility of the chairman and company
secretary to establish and produce an agenda for
each board meeting, inclusive of items brought
forward by members of the Board. Submission of
specific matters and other information relevant to
members’ understanding of the business should be
made to the members electronically and/or in writing
prior to each board meeting — where adequate
preparation can be made for focused discussion.

Where the subject matter is of a sensitive nature,
the presentation will be delivered in person, at the
meeting. The Board encourages the inclusion of
company managers in board meetings, where
assistance is rendered to board members in the
execution of their responsibilities with the provision
of additional insight into items for discussion and/
or for exposure, on recommendation from senior
management, where future potential is seen.

The Company continues to benefit from the sterling
contribution of its Mentor, a requirement of the Junior
Market Rules of the Jamaica Stock Exchange, who
also served as a non-executive director.

Meetings are held via a digital platform however,
all standing arrangements inclusive of quorum
and standing items are adhered to which includes,
the recording of meetings, circulation of minutes,
board papers and all information that is required for
deliberations.

Standing items for meeting agendas, prepared
by the executive, should include the minutes,
CEO's report, operating report from divisions and
subsidiaries, committee minutes and reports, as well
as compliance updates.

Board Meetings

Members Attended

Derrimon Trading Company Limited has established
policies and procedures to ensure timely and full
disclosure of all matters concerning the Company to
the relevant authorities. The Company also ensures
that investors have access to information on the
Company’'s financial performance. These policies
and procedures address areas of materiality of any
matter and the impact that such matter may have
on the price of the company’s stock.

During this financial period, board meetings were
held and the attendance of each member is outlined
in the table below:

Audit Human Resources &
Committee Compensation

Derrick Cotterell
Monique Cotterell
Winston Thomas
lan Kelly

Earl A. Richards

Alexander Williams

o 0O O O O o O

Paul Buchanan

o X o o X X X
X N X X X

Risk Management

Derrimon Trading Company Limited understands and
appreciates that rigorous risk management practices
are critical in ensuring the viability and stability of the
Company. Our risk management practices have also
served to ensure the maintenance of our competitive
advantage within the embarked place.

We have established systems and policies to
manage identifiable risks, which are strictly adhered
to and remain an essential part of our Company’s
operations.

The risk management approach undertaken by the
Company includes:

« Establishing and maintaining practices that foster
a culture within the Company whereby personnel
at all levels are aware of the relevant policies and
support the highest standards of performance
and accountability

« Adoption of an integrated approach to risk
management whereby risk management is an
integral part of all key organizational processes

« Safeguarding of the Company’s assets namely
human, property, reputation and intellectual

+ Rewarding the achievement of the Company’s
strategic and operating plan through an effective
balance of risk and reward

« Rigorous compliance with statutory and
regulatory obligations
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The Board has full responsibility for the Company’s
internal control systems and for monitoring
its effectiveness through various established
committees. The systems that are implemented
by the Board are designed to recognize and
manage risks, while identifying areas which require
continuous attention. Based on these inherent risks,
we provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatements regarding the fairness of the Audited
Financial Statements. The Board has established
a continuous and robust process for monitoring,
identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks that the Company faces. The audit committee
continues to provide the oversight for this function.

The key areas of the internal controls include:

« The assignment of specific aspects of the
Company'’s operation to members of the
executive management team. The team meets
weekly and is responsible for operationalizing
overall strategy and for reviewing the outputs
of these strategies within the framework of the
policies and procedures of the Company. The
outcomes are submitted to the Board and board
committees for deliberations.

« There continues to be an established system
for the segregation of duties of members of
the organization, established authorization
limits for expenditure, contracts, IT application
and interfaces as outlined in the Delegation of
Authority Limits.

« Performance review at the executive team level;
at this juncture actual outcomes are reviewed
with forecasts, budgets and prior reporting year
data assessed.

+ Periodic reviews of identifiable risks through
product cycle counts and annual reviews during
the annual audit and confirmation exercise.

During this financial year, several key risk matters
were deliberated by this Board, these include:

« The decision taken by the Board to increase the
issued share capital of this Company by 1.8 billion
ordinary shares and recommendation of same to
the shareholders for its approval.

« Approval of the position paper from
management to raise additional capital via an
Additional Public Offering.

« Approval of the financial model valuation
presented for the pricing of the new shares to be
issued.

« Approval of the mandate letter and the selection
of financial advisor and broker.
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Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

The Annual GeneralMeeting (AGM) of the Shareholders
remains the Company’'s highest decision-making
body. It decides the duties for which it is responsible
in accordance with the Companies Act 2004 and
the Company’s Articles of Incorporation. The AGM
decides on, among other things, the adoption of the
financial statements and the consolidated financial
statements contained therein and the approval of
dividend payments. It is at the AGM that members of
the Board are elected and Auditors remunerations are
approved. Other matters such as the amendments
to the Articles of Incorporation, share issues and any
acquisition of the Company’'s own shares are also
approved at the AGM. At the last Annual General
Meeting of the Shareholders, all proposals brought to
the Shareholders were unanimously approved.

Derrick F. Cotterell
Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer

Board of
Directors

Monique Cotterell
Company Secretary and Group HR Director

Monique serves as Company Secretary and Human
Resource Director at Derrimon Trading. She brings
extensive experience in the service and retail
industries; in particular, Customer Service Delivery
and Customer Experience. Monique also serves as a
Director of the Rescue Package Foundation.

She holds a Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration from the University College of the
Caribbean (UCC).

Derrick Cotterell
Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer

As Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Derrick is
responsible for the strategic direction and growth
of the company. Derrick has significant experience
in General Management, Sales, Marketing, and
Procurement. He is also the Managing Director of
Caribbean Flavours and Fragrances. He is a member
of the Board for Dupont Primary, serves as a director
of the Governor General of Jamaica's ‘I Believe
Initiative” which seeks to improve the lives of young
Jamaicans, and is a Deacon at his Church.

Derrick is a graduate of the University of the West
Indies and Florida International University, where
he attained a Bachelor of Science in Management
Studies and a Master of Business Administration
respectively.
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Winston Thomas
Non-Executive Director

Winston has over 30 years of expertise in the
distribution industry, with significant experience
in Fast Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG). These
include, bulk products, beverages, and international
household brands. Winston was previously an
Executive Director where he served the company in
the capacity of Chief Operating Officer.

He holds aBachelorof Science Degreein Management
Studies from the University of the West Indies.
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lan Kelly
Group Chief Financial Officer and
Divisional Director - Sampars

lan is adept at finance and risk management
with senior level experience in treasury, asset
management, correspondent banking, corporate
finance and securities trading. He serves as Group
Chief Financial Officer for Derrimon Trading and
Divisional Director for Sampars. lan is also the
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary for
Caribbean Flavours and Fragrances and Woodcats
International Limited.

He is a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) and holds
both Bachelor and Master of Science degrees in
Accounting from The University of the West Indies.
loan also completed the Executive Development
Program at Wharton Business School, the University
of Pennsylvania. He serves on several Boards which
includes TyDixon Primary School, Reggae Marathon,
FosRich Group of Companies, Caribbean Flavours
and Fragrances Limited, Woodcats International
Limited and he is the Chairman of The Governor-
General Jamaica Trust.

Earl Anthony Richards, CD

Non-Executive Director

Earl is adroit in strategic planning, general
management and operations. He has a prestigious
history of public service and received the Order
of Distinction - Commander Class (CD) for Public
Service in 2002.

He is a past President of the Airport Authority of
Jamaica and former Chief Executive Officer of the
Norman Manley International Airport (NMIA) Limited.

Earl is a graduate of the University of Toronto with a
Bachelor of Applied Science in Civil Engineering. He
also received a Master of Business Administration
from the University of the West Indies.

Alexander I.E. Williams
Non-Executive Director

Alexander is an Attorney-At-Law with specialization in
civil litigation, constitutional law claims, commercial
litigation, judicial review of administrative action and
industrial relations and labour law. He maintains a
private practice and has been practicing for over 30
years.

He serves as the President of the Jamaican Bar
Association, Chairman of the Jamaica Anti-Doping
Commission, Chairman of the Land Divestment
Advisory Committee, Chairman of the Land
Information Council of Jamaica and Chairman of the
Tax Incentive Committee of the Urban Development
Corporation.
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Paul Buchanan

Disclosure of

Paul is an experienced Investment Professional who

brings years of experience in portfolio management, ®

client acquisition, sales and marketing. He's currently S h q re h o I d I n s
the Managing Director of Manwei International Limited

and Chief Investment Officer of Cadre Investments

Company Limited. He also sits on the Board of WILCO
Finance Limited.

Paul holds a Bachelor of Business Administration, SHAREHOLDINGS OF TOP TEN (10) STOCKHOLDERS, DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

majoring in Finance, from The University of Technology,

Jamaica.

Top (10) Stockholders Number of Shares Held
Derrick Cotterell 1,113,797,633
Mayberry Jamaican Equities Limited 435,130,974
Moniqgue Cotterell 400,000,000
lan C. Kelly 157,373,169
Estate of E. Cotterell (Deceased) 100,000,000
Winston Thomas 72,351,180
JCSD Trustee Services A/C Barita Unit Trust Capital Growth Fund 64,648,942
Sharon Harvey-Wilson 29,163,580
. Sagicor Pooled Equity Fund 27,756,920
Tania Waldron-Gooden Sagicor Select Fund - (‘Class C’ Shares) Manufacturing & Distribution 22,600,000

Mentor to the Board

Directors Number of Shares Held

Tania Waldron-Gooden is the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer at Caribbean Assurance Brokers Limited. She

has a wealth of experience in Investment Banking, Derrick Cotterell 1,113,797,633
Research, New Product Development, Pension Fund, Monique Cotterell 400,000,000
and Portfolio Management.
" lan C. Kelly 167,373,169

As the Mentor to Derrimon Trading, her responsibility is .,,; Winston Thomas 72,351,180
toprovidetheBoardwith supportinestablishingproper ™~y

P PP . gp. P ol | Earl Anthony Richards 5,325,000
procedures, systems and controls for its compliance
with the Junior Market rules and requirements for Alexander |. E. Williams 500,000
financial reporting, good corporate governance, and Paul Buchanan 300,000

the making of timely announcements.

She holds a Bachelor of Science in Geology from the
University of the West Indies and a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Sunderland in
the UK.

Senior Officers Number of Shares Held

Sheldon Simpson 2,639,728
Craig Robinson 145,000
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Management Discussion

and Analysis

The management of Derrimon Trading Limited (DTL
or Company) and its subsidiaries are responsible for
the presentation and integrity of the Management
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of Derrimon Trading
Limited. The audited financial statements for the
period ended December 31, 2020 should be read in
conjunction with the MD&A to allow the reader to
gain full clarity of the Group and the Company’s
standalone results. This is in the context of a black
swan event (COVID-19) which would have both a
positive and negative impact on various aspects of
the Group’s operation and ultimately impacted its
financial outcome.

2020 Overview

The year 2020 was a pivotal year for the Derrimon
Group of Companies as we successfully navigated
the COVID-19 pandemic and generated the results
being reported to you, our shareholders. Unlike in
prior years where there was a level of certainty in
making projections and estimations, the Group was
put to the test in what was its most challenging year
on record. The MD&A will not be able to fully explain
the various strategies, navigation of the many
challenges and the overall effort of management
and the staff in order to achieve the results reported
in the financial year 2020. In spite of what occurred
last year, we were agile, and as such implemented
a combination of strategies within the context of this
pandemic which ultimately resulted in our Company
being a stronger business for the future. Explaining
the MD&A in the usual manner wouldn't do justice
to the shareholders in providing a deeper level of
understanding surrounding the Group's challenges.
Thus, the first part of the MD&A has been split into
quarterly sections before it covers the segments and
then gives insights into some of the future strategies
of the Group.

Quarter 1 (January 1 - March 31)
(HL8 (T min) — Agility: “A Turning Point” + “Quickness”
The first two months of the first quarter for DTL and the

Along with other contingencies
such as increasing inventory

of certain goods, Derrimon was
ready to respond to the effects of
the COVID-19 pandemic which
had its first confirmed case in
Jamaica on March 10, 2020.

companies within the group were business as usudadl,
which was not dissimilar to any other company
which had been anticipating a very strong year of
growth. However, there was a lingering threat in the
background emerging from China which hadn't
been given a name as yet. Due to Derrimon’s unique
supply chain across its various companies, there
was a general notice ahead of other businesses with
some of our suppliers in China making the company
aware of potential delays. This wasn't something
which would affect Derrimon in any specific way as
other local resellers began to complain of the delays
in shipping goods to Jamaica from China which is
the world's largest supplier of several finished goods.

Based on the increased spread exhibited in the
Eastern Hemisphere, Derrimon expected the novel
Coronavirus to be presentin the Western Hemisphere
at some point within the quarter. Without delay, the
Group’s crisis response management team was
activated and as early as March 2020 we began
implementing some measures to protect staff
and customers and ensure business continuity.
This included increased sanitation, minimising
contact and implementing a rotation system for our
distribution staff who were separated into a day and
night team.
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Along with other contingencies such as increasing
inventory of certain goods, Derrimon was ready to
respond to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic
which had its first confirmed case in Jamaica on
March 10, 2020. Within a matter of days, business
deals were being cancelled and plans shifted as
the country began to take the necessary steps to
contend with the fallout from this unknown virus. The
Government of Jamaica (GOJ) closed the country’s
borders on March 22, 2020 and began implementing
several measures aimed at containing the spread
which had begun to occur in the country.

Derrimon'’s central focus was the safety of its staff and
ensuring that it could remain open at all times with
minimal interruption. This meant that the Company’s
expenditure on information technology increased as
we implemented measures to allow administrative
staff to work from home during the time. Where there
was a suspected case, the relevant location was
closed for a day to undergo a full sanitation exercise
before being reopened. Derrimon has alternate
locations from which it can operate its distribution
business and can operate it virtually without the need
for staff to necessarily be present.

With some of the Company’s debt, used to support
its growth, being due within the next year Derrimon
began engaging its investment advisors about
raising equity capital to expand the business and
take it to the next level. This capital to raise was
delayed at the time as a result of occurrences in
the general equity markets during March and the
hesitancy by investors. Nonetheless, the Company
knew its destination for 2021 and knew that Derrimon
2.0 would be a resounding success when everything
came together.

Duetotheneedtoreallocate capitalforthe temporary
quarantine measures, being implemented by the
GOJ, there was evidence of increased traffic at our
various retail spaces in order to stock up for an
uncertain time. The Company’s revenue increased
by 5 % to $3.3 billion while net profit grew by 39% to
$53.56 million. The consolidated net profit attributable
to shareholders increased by 34% to $98.8 million.
The first reporting quarter was the best performing
period for the Company during 2020.

Quarter 2 (April 1 - June 30)

(#1LE (i zhi) — Resourceful: “A Turning Point”

+ “Wisdom”

The start of the second quarter was met with much
uncertainty as the month of April proved to be the

lowest level of economic activity in the global
economy. The impact on our Company, however,
was mitigated by having sufficient liquidity as well as
credit lines from our bankers to navigate the potential
storm.

By the middle of April, the government decided
to lockdown the parish of St. Catherine due to the
spike in COVID-19 cases attributed to a workplace
cluster. This was one of the unexpected measures
put in place to control the spread of the novel virus.
While this would normally be deleterious for almost
any business, due to the workforce reliance on
St. Catherine, our operations were fortunately not
severely impacted due to the nature of the Group’s
business being classified as essential, especially our
Retail & Distribution Divisions.

With residents marooned in St. Catherine, our
‘ShopSampars’ website saw an overnight explosion
of traffic as consumers wanted a solution to get
access to groceries in the quickest and safest manner
possible. Instead of the typical 20 to 40 orders which
would be used for our existing delivery platform, we
received approximately 2,000 orders in one day.
This level of demand cannot be understated in any
context especially in the middle of a pandemic where
so much economic fallout had already occurred.
Members of the diaspora and local residents began
to shop on our website as they sourced goods for
their family members. As a result of this demand, the
Company shifted its fulfilment time from 1-2 days to
3-4 days, hired additional staff and invested in the
capacity of our website.

This new attention combined with our prior logistic
skills to provide general care packages saw Derrimon
organize up to 200,000 care packages in the second
quarter. Several local firms, government leaders
and private individuals utilized Derrimon'’s services
through the retail platform, Sampars, to ensure that
people who had been severely impacted by the
pandemic could have the most basic food items
to survive what was to come. The demand for our
goods at the time made up for any fallout associated
with the closures of schools, offices, caterers, and
canteens at workplaces.

At this time, Caribbean Flavours and Fragrances
Limited (CFF) found itself in a unique position
whereby it had the resources and saw an obvious
market need. Within a day of team consultation,
CFF had a basic sanitizer ready for sale. This could
be used for the newly established sanitation market

which arose from the shortfall in local supply and
sudden requirement by any business to sanitize and
protect their customers. This resourcefulness by CFF
demonstrated the Group's ability to be flexible and
respond quickly to a rapidly changing environment.

Woodcats didn't experience a similar level of
demand, as seen with the other businesses within
the Derrimon Group, since the manufacturing sector
was impacted sharply by the collapse in external
and local demand for goods. Data from the Jamaica
Manufacturers and Exporters Association (JMEA)
revealed that more than half of its members wanted
to temporarily or permanently close operations as a
result of the pandemic.

Sales from wood pallets are tied to the manufacturing
capacity of our clients which was drastically
impacted at the time. However, that JMEA survey also
showed that more than half of its members received
new business opportunities with less than 25% of
members starting new product lines.

Quarter 3 (July 1 - September 30)

Based on the Company’'s expanding business, the
Company engaged its shareholders at its Annual
General Meeting (AGM) to receive permission to
utilize an additional public offering (APO) to raise fresh
equity capital. These funds would be used for the
Company’s continued expansion and diversification
not only locally but also in the broader global markets.
Shareholders unanimously approved the potential
issue of up to 1.8 billion new ordinary shares with the
requisite measures needed to affect this APO being
granted to the Company.

At this point of the financial year, Derrimon’s general
operations became much more efficient and
profitable as the Company’s profit before taxation
(PBT) grew by 97% while the Group’s consolidated
net profit attributable to shareholders, year to date,
rose by 27%. This is in the context that some of the
Company’s normal and steady business lines such
as schools, offices and caterers were still closed
during this time.

Instead of the typical 20 to 40
orders which would be used for
our existing delivery platform,
we received approximately
2,000 orders in one day.
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Quarter 4 (October 1 - December 31)

Q4 2020 ($'000) | Q4 2019 ($'000) % Change

Revenue 3,159,122 3,118,256 1.31
Gross Profit 642,155 619,927 3.59
Operating Profit 275,497 215,270 28.00
Finance Costs -238,455 -123,821 92.58
Net Profit 21,231 87,196 -75.65
Attributable to

Shareholders

EBITDA 168,281 166,141 1.29

With approval for our APO, Derrimon engaged Barita
Investments Limited to facilitate not only the APO
but the pre-funding needed to begin the process of
engaging our correspondent business partners in the
upcoming acquisitions. Barita loaned the Company
$550 million in short term debt while arranging another
$500 million through a fixed-rate private placement
bond.

The result of using these debt facilities was an overall
93% increase in financing costs for the fourth quarter
which resulted in lower net profit attributable to
shareholders by 76%. However, when comparing each
quarter from an EBITDA (Earnings before Interest,
Tax, Depreciation and Amortization) standpoint,
the result shows a 1% increase in overall earnings
before the effects of IFRS 16 or any other one-time
event such as increased interest expense. Derrimon
began purchasing hard currency, in particular, United
States Dollars, as a means to safeguard against any
conversion risk ahead of the acquisition which was set
to be closed in the first quarter of 2021.

Derrimon’s principles are focused on growing
continuously in a sustainable manner for shareholders
and the overall stakeholders of the business. This has
been evident for the Company as its revenues grew
on a compounded annual growth rate of 16% since
2016 which has been fuelled by acquisitions and
organic growth through new deals. The best time for a
company to seize an opportunity is during a storm and
not when it passes. Based on these details, Derrimon
published its APO prospectus on December 14, 2020
with a timeline from January 6 — January 26, 202],
seeking a minimum of $3.5 billion with a maximum
raise of $4.22 billion.
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Macroeconomic Environment

Even with global growth slowing and economic
activity progressively slowing in Jamaica towards
the end of 2019, there was no expectation that 2020
would be so challenging for Jamaica and the rest of
the world. Preliminary International Monetary Fund
(IMF) data revealed that real global gross domestic
product (GDP) would decline by 3.3% for 2020 with the
Latin America and Caribbean region having a decline
of 7%. Jamaica, which had initially been projected to
see an initial GDP decline of 5.6% by the IMF and 10 — 12
% by the Bank of Jamaica (BOJ), experienced a 9.9%
drop in GDP for 2020. No other period in our 58 years
of independence was there such a pronounced and
precipitous fall in GDP. Jamaica’'s GDP had declined
by 4.33% in 2009 at the height of the global financial
crisis and by 6.69% in 1976 which were two (2) of the
country’s most turbulent economic times. The second
quarter saw an 18.4% drop in GDP which is the biggest
decline on record in modern times.

This was in the context that economic activity across
several sectors such as hotels and restaurants,
transport, storage and communication, manufacturing
and other services remained subdued for most of the
year. Manufacturing saw a 0.4% decline in the fourth
quarter with the goods-producing sector recording
a 02% increase for the period. Agriculture took a
massive hit between the third and fourth quarters as
heavy rains impacted the production of goods in the
country. COVID-19 restrictions impeded the normal
flow of business for many sectors which rely heavily
on traditional business activity to operate profitably.
Travel between the island’'s two main international
airports showed that airport traffic for 2020 was
down by more than 70% with late March to Mid-June
seeing the country’s borders remaining closed. Only
construction remained unfettered by the COVID-19
pandemic as it continued to expand in the subsequent
quarters. Calendar year inflation was 6.4% with a point
to point inflation for December 2020 ending at 5.2%.

This economic shock came at a time when the GOJ
was continuing its expansionary fiscal policy which
included reducing general consumption tax by
150 basis points to 15%, increasing expenditure on
infrastructure across the country, improving public
services and Debt to GDP finally under 100% once
again.

The GOJ was divesting more state-owned assets
through the JSE which was expanding Jamaica’s
investor base which had been relatively flat for
decades.

GOJ's budget plans had several measures which were
meant to improve the formalization of businesses in
Jamaica. This government had also ended its final
review with the IMF under its stand by agreement
which boded well for the country’s increased globall
standing as this showed the country’'s commitment
to good fiscal governance.

When the first COVID-19 case was detected on
Jamaican shores, the government mobilised about
$7 billion in contingency funding for the pandemic
with the We Care and Best Cash programme acting
as a small stimulus measure to support various
business groups and persons who were impacted in
the first month of the crisis. This was in addition to
several other measures to facilitate the importing of
necessary sanitation products and relief measures
extended to persons with payments/liabilities for
certain government entities.

Jamaica’s unemployment rose from an all-time
low at the start of 2020 at 7.3% to 12.6% in July 2020.
The April workforce survey was cancelled by the
Statistical Institute of Jamaica (STATIN) because of
the pandemic. As a result, the data capturing the true
fallout from this period was not directly measured
except by estimates from various business groups.
That fallout within the 6 months of measured labour
activity translated to 150,800 jobs which took more
than 5 years to achieve. The majority of these
job losses were attributed to the tourism sector
which only had about 10% of its estimated 170,000
workforce still employed in May. Even with economic
activity returning slowly for the remainder of the
year, the labour force still lost about 74,300 jobs
between January 2020 — January 2021 despite the
unemployment rate being 8.9%. The Small Business
Association revealed that 35% of its 300 plus member
base had closed their doors permanently.

The GOJ through the Ministry of Finance drew down
on US$520 million from the IMF through the Rapid
Financing Instrument (RFI) to allow for the GOJ to
meet its balance of payments. The BOJ implemented
several measures to ensure the financial system
would be able to withstand any significant fallout
from the pandemic. Apart from opening several
facilities for financial institutions to access, the central
bank requested a moratorium from the commercial
banks and financing holding companies to disburse
dividend payments to shareholders. The measure
spoke to the BOJ's readiness to limit any instability in
the foreign exchange market. The BOJ reduced both
local and foreign currency cash reserve requirements

for commercial banks which were meant to allow
more capital to flow into the financial system. With
its policy rate already at an all-time low of 0.50% (50
basis points), the BOJ maintained its policy rate which
was in contrast to other global central banks such
as the Federal Reserve in the USA which reduced its
policy rate to 0% in effect.

Jamaica’s Net International Reserves (NIR) declined
by a marginal 115% to US$3.1 billion at the end of 2020
which represented 54 weeks of reserves in good
imports and 39 weeks of reserves in goods and service
imports. Although foreign assets had increased to
US$4.08 billion, foreign liabilities increased to US$955
million mainly due to the RFlI accessed in May.
Jamaica’s import expenditure bill declined by 26.4%
cent to US$4.76 billion in 2020 mainly due to the falll
in imports for fuel, lubricants, and raw materials/
intermediate goods. However, exports declined by
the same percentage figure as alumina and mineral
fuels exports fell sharply which resulted in US$1.2 billion
of exports for the year.

Due to the pandemic’s impact on global travel which
was compounded by flight restrictions along with
the general fallout in the country, Jamaica's net
remittances between April - December increased by
31.9% to US$2.2 billion. This is the sharpest increase
in recorded history for remittances with remittance
inflow up by 26.4% to US$2.3 billion while remittance
outflow down by 18.5% to US$164.2 million. The month
of December saw remittance inflows climb by 35.3%
to US 301.3 million in what is the busiest time of the
year. Overall net remittances were up by 39.5% to
US$282.4 million. The Jamaican dollar depreciated by
7.60% against the United States Dollar to $142.64 with
a new record in August 2020 being set as the JMD
eclipsed the $150:1 mark for the first time.

The IMF has projected that Jamaica's real GDP should
increase in 2021 by 15% with several local bodies
projecting GDP growth to be well above 6%.

The IMF projects that the global economy should
increase by 6.0% which should be driven by a 51%
increase in advanced economies and 6.7% in
emerging markets and developing economies. Latin
America and the Caribbean is expected to see a 4.6%
recovery in GDP as well. A major driver of this will be
a successful vaccination campaign along with open
borders to facilitate commerce once again. Jamaica
isn't expected to see a proper recovery to pre-
COVID-19 levels until 2023 based on the changing
environment.
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Stock Price

Although stocks had been on a general incline for the
last 5 years with 2019 introducing tens of thousands
of new investors, 2020 proved to be the worse year of
that decade. The market's momentum began to slow
before 2020 with February and early March seeing
a general decrease in prices as investors sought
capital toinvestin the TransJamaica Highway Limited
initial public offering and an expectedly buoyant
year. However, that future never materialized as the
market deteriorated by more than 21% in March after
the first COVID-19 case announcement. DTL's stock
price, which started 2020 at $2.56, ended up hitting
a new 52 week low of $1.40 before closing out the
month of March at $1.83. This price decline was driven
by the anxiety of investors in what was an uncertain
time for anyone in any asset class.

December 2020 | December 2019 % Change

JSE Index 395,614.93 509,916.44 -22.42
Junior Market 2,643.38 3,348.97 -21.07
Index
JSE Combined 392,435.92 505,253.98 -22.33
Index
M&D Index 82.83 99.68 -16.90
DTL Stock 2.38 2.56 -7.03
Price
High Low
Q1 2.59 1.40
Q2 2.72 1.61
Q3 3.10 2.05
Q4 3.00 2.20

Despite this sharp price decline, DTL's stock price
closed out May at $2.60 on the basis of the Company’s
stellar first-quarter results which was higher than
its 2019 closing price. By the time the Company
announced its second-quarter results on August
14, the stock had hit an all-time high of $3.10 on the
backbone of the Company’s strong fundamentals. At
the end of the third quarter, Derrimon’s stock price
was firmly at $2.91 which was 108% higher than the all-
time low set in March and above the starting price of
2020.The investing legend Warren Buffet has said that
investors should be “fearful when others are greedy,
and greedy when others are fearful.” This perfectly
emulated the decision by some investors who rode
out the storm rather than jump in hard tides.
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DTL's stock price had closed out 2020 at $2.38 as
investors anticipated the Company’'s APO and sold
closerto the general public price of $2.40. This resulted
in DTL's price for 2020 being down by 7%. Investing is
not for the faint of heart as 2020 revealed the risk
involved in any investment especially the local stock
market which exhibited a precipitous decline and has
been trading sideways since that time. One principle
which doesn't change is that a solid investment
doesn’t erode in unstable times once the Company’s
fundamentals remain unchanged.

Revenue

Consolidated revenue for the group increased by 1%
to $12.78 billion which largely arose from the growth
in CFF and our wholesale and retail segments.
Company revenue marginally grew from $11.64 billion
to $1.65 billion. Revenue was stymied mainly due
to the decline from the beverage segment of our
distribution business.

Revenues
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Distribution

The distribution portfolio had a decline in revenue of
3% to $6.26 billion with operating profit declining by
12% to $276.30 million. The beverage portion of the
portfolio was negatively impacted by the measures
implemented in the trade as reduced hours of the
larger wholesale partners and supermarkets, closure
of schools, hotels and the entertainment sector
negatively impacted the beverage portfolio of our
business; which declined by 40%.

We reacted by introducing various innovative
measures during the last quarter of the financial
year which resulted in the stability of the Division's
revenue and profitability. Part of these measures
included the stimulation of sales through deals and
pull programmes but these programmes negatively
impacted our net margins. Derrimon has currently
identified new interests which it will be targeting in
the 2021 financial year in order to bolster growth in
revenue and profitability.

Our online platform peaked
at a growth rate of 300%
during the early stage of the
pandemic and stabilized into
consistent growth thereafter

Wholesale and Retail

This segment focuses on the Company's seven
Sampars locations in several parishes and a single
Select Grocers location in Manor Park Plaza. As more
consumers remained at home during the period and
with disposable income shifted more towards low-
cost goods, the Wholesale and Retail segment grew
and had a substantial improvement in profitability.
Despite revenue only growing by 4% to $5.4 billion, the
segment’s operating profit climbed by 57% to $373.5
million. Select Grocers recorded a 10% improvement
in revenue of $683.75 million.

The work by the team must be commended as they
were devoted to serving our customers in spite of
the challenging environment. Due to the Company’'s
cost-effective products, we supplied several care
package programmes as numerous groups tried to
support the general population during the difficult
times experienced from the COVID-19 fallout. Our
online platform peaked at a growth rate of 300%
during the early stage of the pandemic and stabilized
into consistent growth thereafter. The largest portion
of that growth came during the St. Catherine
lockdown but growth was also achieved by serving
the diaspora.

Other Operations

CFF experienced its best year on record as revenue
climbed by 28% to $593.75 million with net profit
increasing by 161% to $82.3 million which is an all-
time high. CFF's focus on a low sugar alternative
didn't work out as planned which was reflected by
the $22.3 million inventory write off in 2020. Despite
this unfortunate result, CFF successfully reacted to
the pandemic by creating a new alcohol sanitation
product that was used to support entities that
needed to conduct daily cleaning of their businesses.
The Company experienced o greater uptick in
business, thanks to the diverse client range especially
in the fragrance business line demanding more raw
materials to match the demand.

Although business increased in the first quarter,
Woodcats experienced a slight decline in revenue
and adverse impact on profitability for the year.
Revenue for this business declined by 3% to $533.05
million while post-tox profit from continuing
operations declined by 59% to $17.77 million. As a
result of this impact to Woodcats during the year, the
Company commenced its automation and retooling
programme and financed same with a combination
of equity and debt. Total assets grew by 39% to
$466.49 million while total liabilities increased by 138%
to $182.80 million.

Expense Management

Total expenses for the Derrimon Group increased by
9% to $1.84 billion with operating and administrative
expenses rising by 1% to $1.42 billion compared to
selling and distribution expenses which only grew by
3% to $418.63 million. The amortization of our right-
of-use asset increased by 95% to $188.25 million
which was related mainly to IFRS 16 on properties that
we lease. The only major expense that experienced
a double-digit increase was professional fees
which jumped by 77% to $96.78 million due to our
planned Additional Public Offer (APO). This expense
should not reoccur in the 2021 financial year which
was when the APO was executed and closed. Staff
expenses declined by 2% to $696.58 million which
was a deliberate measure as the group focused on
conserving capital during the year.

Total expenses for the Company increased by 8% to
$1.62 billion which included a 10% rise in operating and
administrative expenses to $1.21 billion and a marginal
increase for selling and distribution expenses
which closed the period out at $410.18 million. Staff
costs decreased by 4% to $596.57 million while the
IFRS 16 being the main influencer for the 101% rise in
amortization cost of right-of-use asset to $182.85
million.

Finance Costs

The inclusion of a foreign exchange loss totalling
$34.24 million for the group and $64.29 million for
the Company along with a higher lease interest
expense from IFRS 16 were the main drivers behind
increased finance costs. Interest expense for the
group increased by 16% to $236.89 million while the
Company experienced a 13% rise to $248.06 million.

Taxation & Profits

Group taxation slightly rose to $44.10 millionin contrast
to the Company which experienced a reduction of
10% to $24.72 million.
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Ahead of our APO, the Company sought guidance
from its attorneys which allowed us to apply to the
JSE regarding our status as a Junior Market company
which carries certain tax benefits.

JSE Junior Market Rules require a company that has a
share capital base higher than $500 million to either
move to the main market or be allowed to stay with
permission from the JSE under the condition that they
pay Main Market fees. Our premise was that Derrimon
moving to the Main Market would be negative to the
minority shareholdersin CFF since the company would
also have to move to the Main Market based on other
Junior Market rules. The JSE's has given permission
to stay on the Junior Market once the Company
pays Main Market fees instead of Junior Market fees
related to the listing. Derrimon has, however, written
to the Tax Administration Department requesting
its approval to continue to benefit from the 50% tax
remission until the fourth quarter of 2023.

Derrimon'’s profit attributable to shareholders slightly
declined by 4% to $279.83 million with earnings per
share ending the year at $0.102. The Company’s net
profit marginally fell from $227.40 million to $225.64
million.

Balance Sheet Management

The Group's total assets increased by 28% to
$7.42 billion which was driven by a 30% increase
in the current asset base which closed 2020 at
$4.78 billion. The bulk of these current assets were
related to our receivables balance which was 82%
higher at $1.87 billion. It should be noted that the
Company had a $918.41 million deposit related to
the New York acquisitions which are being reported
in other receivables. The trade receivables balance
was $895.93 million while our other receivables
component stood at $134.25 million. Non-current
assets for the group grew by 25% as a side effect of
our higher right-of-use asset provision related to IFRS
16.

The Company assets rose by 27% to $6.9 billion with
current assets growing by 34% to $4.17 billion while
non-current assets increased by 18% to $2.73 billion.

Total liabilities increased by 30% to $5.81 billion which
was mainly attributed to the pre-funding debt used
to demonstrate our capability to fund the New York
acquisition. However, with non-current liabilities only
rising by 32% to $3.60 billion, current liabilities covered
the maijority of these debt-related increases. Current
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liabilities were 29% higher at $2.21 billion but we also
saw a decline in our accounts payables balance.
The Company's total liabilities increased by 30% to
$5.52 billion with current liabilities being 30% higher
at $2.10 billion. Non-current liabilities grew by 31% to
$3.42 billion largely from the increase in long term
loans and higher lease liability provision.

Equity attributable to shareholders increased by 21%
to $1.43 billion primarily from the growth of retained
earnings which surpassed $1billion to close the period
at $119 billion. The dividend payment for 2020 was 20%
higher at $32.8 million in what was Derrimon’s second
dividend paid since listing on the JSE in 2013.

As a result of some of the items outlined above,
Derrimon remained leveraged with the Group's
debt to equity at 243 times while the Company’s
leverage ratio stood at 250 times. We expect that
with the projected inflows from the APO in 2021 that
the debt position and ratio will experience significant
improvement.

Capital Expenditure

The Group spent $102.62 million on the purchase
of property, plant and equipment (PPE) with $49.3
million spent on furniture and equipment (F&E) and
$39.02 million on leasehold improvement of our
property spaces. The Company spent $73.59 on
PPE with $59.55 geared towards F&E plus leasehold
improvements. The Company continues to outfit
the major Distribution Centre with the necessary
equipment in stages and this is expected to continue
into the 2021 financial year.

Outlook & Future

Crisis = f&#l(wéi ji) — Crisis: “A Turning Point”

+ “Danger”

Derrimon Trading launched its APO in December
2020 for an initial underwritten amount of $3.5 billion
with the option to upsize to a total of $4.22 billion for
1.8 billion new ordinary shares. The Company closed
its offer early on January 26 and had its official listing
ceremony on February 24, 2021.

As lead arranger of the APO and an integral partner
in the success of the offer, Barita took a 20% stake in
Derrimon which makes the Company an associate of
Barita under IAS 28. This multibillion-dollar investment
in Derrimon by Barita, shareholders and the general
public speaks to the confidence which has been
endowed on the management of the Group to deliver
on its plans as outlined in the APO prospectus.

As part of the Company’s aim to move forward with
Derrimon 2.0, the Company began to reduce its debt
levels with $1.8 billion of the APO proceeds being used
to lower the leveraged position and transform the
balance sheet of the Group. The reduction of this
debt has positioned Derrimon with a stronger capital
base where the equity section of the balance sheet
represents more than half of the assets owned by
the Group. This is in contrast to the Company’s early
years of accelerated growth from acquisitions and
expansions which was fuelled by debt which was
almost 80 percent of the balance sheet with respect
to the asset base.

Derrimon’s earmarked entry to the United States
market was successfully completed in February
2021 as the Company acquired the two acquisition
targets in New York. This effort was the culmination
of 2 years of due diligence and careful observation
to determine if it was the key target for our business.
To effect this acquisition, Derrimon incorporated
Manrock LLC which acquired the full ownership of
FoodSaver NY Inc. and Good Food for Less, LLC (Good
Food NY) as a going concern. As part of the deal,
20% of Manrock's shares were issued to Oralcrys
LLC which is an entity beneficially controlled by the
former owner-operator of those businesses. This left
Derrimon with an 80% stake in Manrock which will
serve as the central holding company for interests in
the NY state.

Apart from the opportunity to earn more hard
currency and improve our business capacity,
Derrimon will be able to vertically integrate some of
the products in the Group through this NY venture
which will undoubtedly improve the Derrimon reach.

As we continue to focus on growing the wholesale and
retail business, Derrimon has allocated $700 million
to a new Select Grocers location and expanding the
Delect brand of goods. With an aim to broaden the
retail reach of our supermarket business, Derrimon
will spend at least $500 million on the outfitting of a
new Select Grocers at the Millennium Mall Complex
in Curatoe Hill, Clarendon. The 21-acre property has
garnered significant interest since opening with the
new supermarket expected to broaden the Delect
brand of goods reach while creating a new market
space for Derrimon in Clarendon. With the southern
end of Clarendon gaining more interest as a space
for future development which will be augmented on
the extended East-West Highway, the prospects for
the new supermarket remain high.

The Delect brand has been a competitive proprietary
brand of Derrimon for more than a decade and
has continued to appeal to its desired consumer
segment. Creating a wider range of products in an
environment where persons are still at home and
potentially want to save while enjoying a good meal is
the catalyst for expanding the brand. The opportunity
for increased sales through the synergy of Manrock
LLC presents a valuable proposition for the brand’s
future potential.

Despite Jamaica’'s economic prospects remaining
dull due to the COVID-19 pandemic’s drag on the
earning potential of several sectors of the economy,
Derrimon is bullish and maintain our aggressive
plans for optimising the various segments of the
Group. We expect Woodcats to improve its business
as the year progresses with more manufacturing
firms starting to ramp up their business lines. This
was recently supported by the GOJ’'s removal of the
customs administration fee for exports under $500
USD which is seen as a measure to promote exports
by local firms.

CFF will continue its accelerated performance
with the Company’s expenditure on research and
development expected to pay off in the year. This is
considering the continued push to make Jamaican
flavours more available to the broader market and
the Company’s sanitization products remaining
in high demand due to the current need for the
prevention of spreading COVID-19.

Sampars Cash and Carry is expected to deliver more
valueintheyearwith our stronger capacity tomanage
a surge in demand from consumers ordering goods
for their relatives at home. The Manrock acquisition
should start accruing results in the first quarter and
add the necessary propulsion to a targeted net
profit. Derrimon is still carefully monitoring the impact
to global supply chains and changing tax regimes in
the markets that we operate in. It is hoped that the
vaccination programmes worldwide will help to bring
normalcy to economies and help us all adjust to the
new normal.
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Management Team
Derrimon

Stewart Jacobs Carol Wilson Verona Howell Ricardo Skyers Desrene Reid Warren Cornwall
Commercial Manager Credit Manager Group Management Sales Manager Customer Service Manager Business Analyst
Accountant

Amaya Miller
Loss Prevention &
Safety Manager

Otema Thompson Rocky Allen Jermaine Thomas
Group Financial Manager Security & Facilities Information & Technology
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Cherene Smith
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Judith Johnson
Manager - Sampars
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Kevin Peart
Purchasing Coordinator

Marvette Dixon
Manager - Sampars
Marcus Garvey Drive

Carlos Duhaney
Manager - Sampars
West Street

Genevieve Christie
Depot Manager - Sampars

Orville Wilson
Manager - Sampars
Washington Blvd

Leroy Dawkins
Business Development
Manager Sampars

Romaine Dawson Gavin Smith

Commercial Manager Manager - Select Grocers
Sampars

Lamoya Walters
Manager - Sampars
St. Ann’s Bay

Lisa Moncrieffe
Manager - Sampars
Old Harbour
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Corporate Social
Responsibility

Having a positive impact in our society is something that we
continuously strive to achieve. Our activities are primarily
centred around education and community outreach
programs. With the advent of the COVID-19 pandemic it
was not only paramount for us to assist with our immediate
community, that we operate in, but also the wider society.

Derrimon through its retail arm, Sampars, collaborated with
private sector organizations, government representatives,
and individuals to create care packages. These care
packages typically consisted of basic food and household
items and were distributed throughout the country to people
who were severely impacted by the pandemic. The onset of
the pandemic caused significant financial distress to many
people and were happy that we could have participated in
this venture to give any assistance that we could.

Donations,inthe form of food items, were also done to different
entities such as churches, schools, and private organizations
to name a few. During the year, various organizations created
initiatives to help feed the indigent and elderly and Derrimon
was in a position to support in a tangible way.

We continued our support for education by providing financial
assistance to students in our surrounding communities. All
levels of education are covered: tertiary, secondary, and
primary. This is done primarily through our Self Reliance Youth
Development program. The Self Reliance Youth Development
program also hosts monthly group discussions with the
parents of the students to explore and find solutions for
common parental issues.

Other activities include working with local church ministries
such as the Majesty Gardens Transformation Ministry,
which seeks to positively impact the lives of people in the
community, and participation in corporate fundraising walk/
run events.

We remain committed to being active participants in our
society working with other stakeholders to achieve a better
Jamaica.
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INDEPENDENT AUMTORS' REPORT

wdereng@babosrilhi c0m jim
To the Members of e Batardly cem m
Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Report on the audit of the consolidated and stand-alone Minancial statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements and the stand-alone financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of Derrimon Trading Company
Limited {the Company) and its subsidiaries (ogether “the Group™) and the stand-alone financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and of their consolidated and stand-alone
financial performance and their consolidated and stand-alone cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with the
requirements of the Jamaican Companies Act.

What we have audited

Dermimon Trading Company Limited’s consolidated and stand-alone financial statements
COMPrise:

the consalidated statement of inancial position as at 31 December 2020;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the company statement of financial position as a1 31 December 2020,

the company statement of comprebensive income for the yvear then ended;

the company statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the company statement of cash flows for the vear then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
palicies.

" & F & & & ® & @

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15Asz). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements section of our report,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 15 sufficient and appropriate o provide a
basis for our opinion.

ADVISORY « ASSURANCE « TAX el 2
PARTHERS: Wayne Strachan; FCAFCCAMBA Emde Latayette; FCAFCCAMEA PRINCIFAL: Aoxisna Malcolm-Tyrell FCAFCCAMEA

Baker Tilly S3rachan Lafayeite trading as BakerTilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly Internatioral Ltd, the members of which are
separale and mdeperdent legal enlities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Continued)

To the Members of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Page 2

Report on the audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board

for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), We have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Dther matter

The financial staements of Demimon Trading Company Limited for the vear ended 31
December 2019, were audited by another firm of Auoditors whom expressed an unmodified
opinion on those financial staiements on the 27 February 20020,

Dur audit approach

Audit scope

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed ithe risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements. In particular, we
considered where management made subjective judgements; for cxample, in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering fulure events
that are inherently uncertain, As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including, among other matters, consideration of whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

How we tailored our group awdit scope

We talored the scope of our audit in onder 1o perform sufficient work 1o enable us o provide an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of
the Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operales.

Our 2020 audit was planned and executed having regand to the fact that the operations of the
Group remain largely unchanged from the prior year.

The Group’s businesses are crganised into three prmary segments being Distnibution, Wholesale
& Retail and Other operations. These entities maintain their own accounting records and report
0 the Growp through the completion of consolidation packages.

In establishing the overall group awdit sirategy and plan, we determined the type of work that
was needed 10 be performed at the components by the group engagement team and component
auditors.,

A3
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Continued)

Tao the Members of

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Continued)
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Demmon Trading Company Limated
Page 3

Report on the audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements

Koy andit matiers

Key audit matters are those maters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements of the current period. These
matiers were addressed in the context of our audit of the consalidated and stand-alone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

To the Members of

Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Page 4

Report on the audit of the consolldated and stand-alone financial statements

Ky sudit matter

Haow the muotier wos sddressed in oor soedit

Koy audit matter

Croodrill irpairment assessment

Refer w notes 2(b)y and & of the consolidated and
stand-alone financial statements for discloswres
of related accounting policies, judgements and
estimates,

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
recorded goodwill of S1EZ million, representing
approximately 2.4% of the Group's total assets.

We focused on this area as  the  anmual,
impairment assessment requires management”s
judgement and estimation, particularly in relation
v the estimation of future cash flows from the
businesses, taking into considerstion the key
assumption  being  the revenue growth and
discount rate in the Group's impairment model.

How our audit addressed the key aondit matter

With the assistance of intemal cxperts, we performed the
following procedures, amongst others, over management’s
goodwill impairment assessment as follows:

» Evaluated management’s future cash flow forecasis,
and the process by which they were prepared, including
testing the underlying caloulations and comparing them
1o the lntest financial forecast.

* Compared previous forecasts to actual results to nssess
the performance of the business and the accuracy of
forecasting.

Challenged management’s key assumptions for revemue
growth and discount rate. In order 1o do this, we

= gwalugicd these  assumptions  with  reference  w
valuations of similar companies,

* compared the key assumptions (o extemally derived
data where possible, including marker expectations of
investment return and projected economic growth,

* Evaluated the revenue growth and discount rate used in
management s cash Mow projections,

The results of ouwr  procedures  indicawed thar  the
assumptions wsed by management for assessing poodwill
impairment ane considersd,

4

Baorrowings

Refer to moies 2 (ok 1% and 2000
the Ffinancial slalemenis  for
management’s  disclosures ol
relabed  accounting policics,
judprcmis and estimates relating
W bormowisgs. As @ 31
Diecember MI20, long and shoet-
term  bomowings  inclusive of
preference sharex, excluding bong
torm bease Kabilites representod
53,4 billion (2019 - $2.39 billion)
ar T (A% - 675%:) of the ol
equity and debis of the Geoup.
Thi Growp costinues. b be highly
leveraged.

The Parent Comnpany remains highly levemaged as management contineses oo sirsegically nse
debd financing as the priscipal piller oo implsment structared prowth peojects within ke
Groap. Darning the year, management implemented stralegies o improve its gross margins,
ihereby improving its cash fows and ils ability o meel Ms financial obligations as they (all
dise. The Parent Company coslifnues 1o cxamine ils fisancing oplioas within the comtext of its
debt management drategy amd review its choices based on the present improving markel
conditions as well &5 s risk profile.

Chur awsdit procedures. included: -

& Reviewead he loan agrecmenls and repayiment schedules. We noted that all the baans wene
bedng serviced on & timely basis as per the contracton] sprecenents, primcipally by
predetenmined monthly deductions from the Company's vaous bask sccounts,

s Coafirmed the halances, reviewed the maturity schedule for repaymenl, 1essad 1he inlerc
calcubations amd desermined that the wial bomowings represensed oblipstions by the
Company and the Group,

s Teuted 1he effectivencss of comtrols over he limely repayment of leans and other anadn
facilities and moted that they ane compliant with the vanous agneements.

We had robast disosssbons wilh senior managensst regarding the growth and expansion
strabegy using debd as the principal means of growth and expanston and the ultimaie stratcgy
1o reduce debl capital aver the long term. A downside fo this stralegy is the inkerent baquodity
risk thal the cash generating units acquired, may not perform as expected. resulting in s
Company and Grosp being unable 1o meet i obligations as they fall due,

Manggement s misdful of this inherent lequidity risk. However, management is confident
that their strasegic growth and expansion plan will continue to perform based on Bistorical
performance and anticipated fisture positive tremds. doe to the encouraging economic fachars
being experienced in the marketplace despite the Covid- 19 pande mac.

Mansgement ls of the opanion thsl adeqeste saleguards are in place as they have implemeniod
itk necessary policics and procedures including scenario snalysis, aliemative payment
strategies in the event of cash flow challenges snd direct momitoring of the individual
hormowings. 'We evaluated the perfiormancs of the bomowing porifiolio subsequent to the end
of the reponting period 1o determine whether there was a need for any adjostment or whetkser
ihere were any defmill or breach af any 1emems of fnancial covenanits. There weore no adverse
Medimgs. We also reviewed legal and bank conlirmations and cosrespondenses, and we did
nod identify any negative matiers or need for adjustment ai the time of approval and signing
of the mudst repoet by the Board of Directors.

As a Company imbistive o reduce ns high beverage ratio, in Jasuary 3021 the company
issued sddstional shares s the market thesagh an Additionsl Public Offering (APO) whenchy
in pmised $4.070 billica dollars. A pan af the proceeds will be utblized 1o reure 5630 millicn of
shori-term deibt which was raised o sssist with the deposit on a strategic acquisition and an
additional 1512 billion is being channelled to liquidate medivmfeng term debd which will
resull in a reduction in the debifequity ratio fromm 70:30 10 2773,

el
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Continued)

To the Members of
Demmon Trading Company Limited
Page 5

Report on the audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements
Other information

Management 15 responsible for the other information. The other information compnses the
Annual Report (but does not include the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements and
our guditors” report thereon), which is expected to be made available to ws after the date of this
auditors' report.

Owr opinion on the consolidated and stand-alone financial stmements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements, our
responsibility is (o resd the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
and stand-alone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears 10 be matenally masstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with EOVEmance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated and
stand-alone financial statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated and stand-alone financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS and with the requirements of
the Jamaican Companies Act, and for such internal contrel as management determines is
necessary (o enable ihe preparation of consolidated and stand-alone financial statements that are
free from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and stand-alene fnancial statements, management is responsible
for assessing the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liguidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alicrnative but (o do so,

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Group and Company's
financial reponing process.

@ bakertilly

INDEPENDENT AUMTORS' REPORT (Continued)

To the Members of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Page &

Report on the audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements

Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial
Flaiemienis

Our objectives are (o oblain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and stand-
alone financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and o issue an auditors’ report that inclisdes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is nod a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I5As will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individwally or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
and stand-alone financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional sceplicism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and stand-alone
financial statements, whether due 10 fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a bazis for our opinion. The nsk of not detecting a material mizsstalement resulting
from fraud 15 higher than for one resulting from emor, a5 frowd may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal conirol,

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nod for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group and Company's intermal control.

#  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by managemeni.

* Conclude on the approprialeness of management’s use of the going comcern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtmined, whether a matenial unceranly exisis
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or Company’s
ability to continue as a going concemn. I we conclude that a materal uncertainty exisis, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated and stand-alone financial statements of, if such disclosures are inadequate, (o
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditors’ report. However, future evenis or comditions may cause the Group or
Company 1o cease (o continue 4s 4 going concem.

w7
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@ bakertilly

INDEPENDENT AUMTORS® REPORT (Continued)

To the Members of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Page 7

Report on the audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial
statermentis (continued)

*  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and stand-
alone Minancial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidaed and
stand-alone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business sctivities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit, We remain solely responsible for our audin opinion,

*  We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
ihe planned scope and Gming of the audit and significamt audit Nindings, including any
significant deficiencies in intemal controel that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and oiher maiters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial
statements of the current perod and are therefore the key awdit maners. We describe these
maticrs in our auditors” report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremnely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would reasonably be
expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

@ bakertilly

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Continued)

To the Members of
Derrimyon Trading Company Limited
Page 8

Report on other legal and regulatory reguirements

As required by the Jamaican Companies Act, we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of
our audit,

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept, so far as appears from our
examination of those records, and the accompanying consolidated and stand-alone fnancial
statements are in agreement therewith and give the information required by the Jamaican
Companies Act, in the manner so required.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Wavne
Strachan.

Baleer T [“é"r

riered Accountants
Kingston, Jamatca
| March 2021
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Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2020

Page |

ASSETS

Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assels
Investments
Right-of-use asscts
Deferred tax assets

Curremnt assets
Inveniores
Reccivables
Taxation recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital
Capital reserves
Investment reserve
Retained eamings

MNon-controlling interest

Non-current liabilities
Long term loans
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Current labilities
Payables
Shor term loans
Current portion of long term loans
Current portion of lease liabilities
Taxation
Bank overdraft

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

MNote

= @ m oo

12

13

14
15
16

21

2020 2019
5°000 5000
537,785 483,476
438 643 438,643
163,695 142,979
457,435 1,039,077
9,859 :
2,637,417 2,104,175
2,186,560 1,992,174
1,874,810 1,033,069
: 6,019 |
117,027) | 647.247]
4,778,397 3,678,500
7415814 5,782,684
140,044 140,044
94,638 94,638
614 614
1,190,406 943,372
1,425,702 1,178,668
178,235 134,844
1,603,937 1,333,312
2,166,389 1,731,003
1,437 367 1,000,272
- 4214
3,603,756 2,735,489
718,109 976,546 |
1,056,013 536,316
179,231 122,448
165,538 70,601
33,132 7472 |
56,008 -
2,208,121 1,713,683
7,415,814 5,782,684

Approved for issue by the Board of Directors on | March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

W&ﬂimclm
Richards

I’W Diarector

{ Derrick Cotterell

i

Page 2
Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2020
Note 2020 2019
$000 $000
Revenue 22 12,777,464 12,649,017
Cost of sales (10.294,801)  (10,370,183)
Gross profit 2 482,663 2,278,834
Unrealised gains on investments valued at fair value
through profit or loss
Chher operating income 23 97,830 37,767
Operating and administralive expenses 24 (1,424,862) (1,279.414)
Selling and distribution expenses (418,625) (408,265)
Operating profit 25 739,679 628,922
Finance costs, net 27 (384, 490) (283, 196)
Profit before taxation 355,189 345,726
Taxation 28 (44, 100) (43.018)
Profit after taxation, being total comprehensive
income 089 302,708
Met profit attributable to:
Stockholders of the Company 279,834 290,744
Non-controlling interest 31,255 11,964
311,089 302,708
Earnings per ordinary stock unit attributable to 30
shareholders of the company 30.102 30,106
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Page 3 Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Year ended 31 December 2020
Year ended 31 December 2020 20210 2019
£°000 5000
Equity Attribntable to Shareholders of Noo-controliing .. pooyey CASH RESOURCES WERE PROVIDED BY{USED IN):
the Company Interest Operating Activities
Mumber of Share Capital Retained l.n;::nui Profit before taxation 155,189 5,70
Eum 'l:!-ﬂ Rm l:.m-'“h e Adjll!-m'ﬁ:‘l'l.lﬁ for:
Amortization of rght-of-use assets 188,254 G0,618
000 000 $'000 ¥000 000 000 3000 Depreciation 48,312 67,088
Fair value gain on financial assets (2,647 s
Balance at 1 January 2019 2 733,361 140,044 04,638 820343 614 162,597 1,218,236 Gain on disposal of plant and equipment - (176)

- Noa cash adjustment . (11,034)
Dividends (Note 32) . - - (27,334) . - (27.334) [ncrest income (31,043) B
Dividends paid by subsidiary to Lease imerest expense 113,358 78,560
pon-controlling interest (Note 17) i . . . ) (R,538) (8.538) Interest expense 236,591 204 636
Movement during the year - - - (140,381) . (11,179) (151,560) E‘Lm"“m“dm“;g mﬁm v :E 20,335
Tonzl comprehensive income . . . 200,744 . 11,964 302,708 LRl 354 R10,753
Balance af 31 December 2019 3933.35] 140044 04,638 943372 614 154,844 1333512 Changes in operating asscts and Liabilitics:

. (Increase)fdecrease in receivahles (ET 5400 [0, 542
Dividends (MNote 32) . - - (32,500} ) - (32 BO0E) Decrease in payables (376,137) (172,608)
Dividends paid by subsidiary to Decrease in related parties - Lila
pon-conirodling interest (Note 17) - - - - - (7.864) i7.864) Increase in inventories (154, 386) (T11,38T)

s ] - . . Cash (usad in}provided by operating activities (369 T09) 32526
Total comprehensive income - 210834 31,255 311089 Taxes paid (26.494) (42.547)
Balance at 31 December 20240 2733 361 140,034 Q4638 1190406 fil4 178,235 1603937 Tnterest paid (219.491) (204,636)

Leose interest paid (113,358) (78,5601
Interest received 31,043 -
Met cash used in operating activities [t R (293, 217)
Investing Activities
Purchase of investments (18,065 29915
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (102,621} (84,043
Purchase of intangible assets - (41,223)
Procesds from dispesal of plant and equipment - 428
Met cash used in investing activitics {120,650 (95,803
Financing Activities
Liznse pnncipal payments (94,004) (61,6749
Long term loans, net 492 169 918,004
Dividends paid (32,800) (27,334)
Drividends paid by subsidiary 1o non-controlling interest (7,864 (8.318)
Short term loans, net 519,697 o 2080, DO
Met cash provided by financing activities RTT IRR G0 A3
Met increase in cash and cash eguivalents SR A4RD 231,343
Effect of exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents (44,807} -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 647,247 415,904
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END(OF YEAR B, 920 647,247
Represented by:
Cash at bank and in hand 559,232 509627
Short term deposiis 157,795 137,620
Bank overdrall i 50,008) -
Fbll, G20 647,247
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Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Company Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2020
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Page 5
Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2020
Mote 2020 2019
LR 1] S5O0
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 426,725 385,375
Intangible assets f 33220 33,220
Imvestment in subsidiaries and joint venture 7 942,541 942 541
Imvestments g 4,744 4,956
Right-of-use assels g 1,302,032 945,179
Deferred tax assets 10 TR - |
2,728,153 23113276
Current assets
Inventories 11 1,975,934 1,750,852
Eeceivables 12 1,691,442 245,234
Taxation recoverable - 1,347
Cash and cash equivalents 13 504,159 517.920
4,171,535 3,115,353
TOTAL ASSETS 6,899,638 5,426,629
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 14 140,044 140,04
Capital reserves 15 04 638 04,638
Imvestmient reserve 16 614 614
Retained eamings 1,140,826 947 982
__ 1376122 _ 1,183278
MNon-current liahilities
Long term loans 15 2,162,588 1,711,454
Lease habilines ¥ 1,256,180 908,116
3418, 768 2,619,570
Current liabilities
Payables 19 640,003 002,850
Shon term loans ) 1,056,013 535,000
Current portion of long term loans 18 166,847 119,629
Current portion of lease liabilities 9 153,174 66,302
Taxation 22,763 -
Bank overdraft 31 56,005 -
2,106 798 1,623,781
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,854 638 5426629

Approved for issue by the Board of Directors on | March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

[

Dirrick Cotierell

Revenoe
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Unrealised losses on investments valued at fair value
through profit or loss

Other operating income

Dperating and admunistrative expenses
Selling and distribution expenses
Operating profit

Finance costs, net

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit aler taxation, being total comprehensive
income

Earnings per ordinary stock unit aftributable to
sharcholders of the company

Mote

23

53

2020 2019

LR L1 5 ()
11,650,661 11637878
(9.483.271) (9.608.914)
2,167,350 2028964
(213) -
Q9,097 26,864
(1,206,285)  (1,098.451)
(410,182) (404,861
GAD BT 552,516
(3994400 (297,576)
250,367 254,940
(24,723) (27,538)
275 644 227 4002
20,083 200083
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity Company Ststmmint of Custi Figwy
Year ended 31 December 2020 Year ended 1 December 2020
2020 2019
§'000 000
Number of Share Invesiment Capital Retained CASH RESOURCES WERE PROVIDED BYAUSED IN):
Shares  Capital  Reserve  Reserves Earnings  Total Operating Activities 250,367 254,040
$000  $000  $000  $000  §000  $000 rot before taxation . '
Balance at 1 January 20019 2,733,361 140,044 614 94638 T47.914 983210 Depreciation 32,244 51,067
Dividends (MNote 32) - - - = (2T3M) (37,334 Amaortization of right-of-use asseis 182,854 00,918
Total comprehensive Fair value loss on investments valued at fair value through
income - - - - 227402 227402 profit or loss 213 -
Balance at 31 December MNon cash adjustment - (8,051)
2019 2,733,361 140,044 614 94,638 947982 1183278 Interest income (29,833) -
Dividends (Note 32) - . . - (328007 (32,8000 Lease interest rate 87,051 18,559
Total comprehensive Loan inlerest expenses 248,057 219017
income . . . - 2B6M 225644 Impairment allowances 35,690 29335
Balance at 31 December Loss on foreign exchange : 64,292 .
D 2,733,361 140,044 G4 94,638 1140826 1,376,122 BT0.075 T16,685
Changes in operuting assets and liabilities:
(Increase Wdecrease in receivables (BE1.808) 79411
Diecrease in pavables (2T0.347T) (187,697)
Increase in inventory _ (225,082)  (639,563)
Cash used in operating activities (506,352) (31,164)
Taxes paid (19,.500) (28.891)
Lease interest paid (37091} (78.559)
Loan interest paid (230,657) (219,484)
Interest received 24 833 -
Net cash used in operaling activities ~(B13,767y (35H.098)
Investing Activity
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (73.594) (49,091
Net cash used in investing activily (73.594) (49.091)
Financing Activities
Long term loan, net 498 352 o06.219
Dividends paid (32,800) (27,334)
Lease principal payments (169,063 (61,679)
Short-term loans, net 521,013 (201,416)
Met cash provided by financing activities ) BT 502 615,790
Met (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents (69,859) 208,601
Cazh and cash equivalents at beginning of year 517,920 309,319
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 448,061 517,920
Represented by:
Cash at Bank and cash in hamd 48] B68 491 546
Shor term deposiis 22,291 26,374
Bank overdraft (56,098) -
448,061 317,920
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Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Motes o the Financial Statements
31 December 2020

Page 10

Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Motes to the Financial Siatemenis
31 December 2020
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1. Identification and principal activities

Demimon Trading Company Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated in 1998 and is
domicibed in Jamaica. The Company is listed on the Junior Market of the Jamaica Stock
Exchange (JSE). The Company®s registered office is located at 233-235 Marcus Garvey Drive,
Kingston 11.

The principal activities of the Company include the wholesale and bulk distnbution of
household and food items inclusive of meat products, chilled and ambient beverages and the
retailing of those and other food items and meal products through the operation of a chain of
outlets and supermarkets. The Company's subsidiaries are involved in manufacturing of
Aavours and fragrances along with wooden pallets,

These fnancial siatements present the resulis of operations and financial positions of the
Company and its subsidiaries, which are referred 1o as “the Group™; the subsidianes are as
follows:

% Ownership by % Dwnership by
Company at Company at
Subsidiaries  Principal Activities 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Muanufacture of Flavours

CFFL and Fragrances 62.02% 62.02%
Select Operation of

Grocers Supermarket 60% 6%
Wioodcats

International  Manufacturers of

Lamited wonden pallets 100 1 0%

DTCL as at December 31, 2020, owns 62.02% of the shares of CFFL, the same percentage as
the prior year.

DTCL continues to hold 60% in the joint operation with Select Grocers and accounts for this
entity by incorporating &0% of its assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses into the financial
statemenis of the Parent Company.

DTCL continues tx hold 100% of the shares of Woodcats Intemational Limited, a
manufacturer of wooden pallets, making it a wholly-owned subsidiary.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial stalements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied for all the years presented.
Where necessary, poor year comparatives have been restated and reclassified o conform o
Current year presentation.

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and their interpretations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board and have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the valuation of certain items. They are also prepared
in accordance with the provisions of the Jamaican Companies Act,

The financial statements comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of financial position, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash
flows and the notes.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires management
o make estimates and assumplions that affect the repored amounts of assels and
liabilities, contingent assets and contingent liabilines at the end of the reporing period
and the total comprehensive income during the reporting period. The group makes
eslimates and assumplions concerming the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any adjusiments thal may be
necessary would be reflected in the year in which actual resulis are known, The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement in complexity or areas where assumptions or
estimates are significant (o the financial statements are dizcussed in note 4.
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Derrimon Trading Company Limited Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Motes to the Financial Statements Notes to the Financial Statements

3 December 2020 31 December 2020

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continwed ) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) Basis of preparation (continmed)
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Standards and amendmenis to published standards effective in the current year
that are relevant to the Group®s operations

The following standards have been adopted by the Group for the first tme which have
been issued and are effective for mandatory adoption for the financial year beginning on
or after | January 2020;

Definition of a Business - Amendments to IFRS 3 (effective for Business
combinations for which the acquisiion date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The amended definition
of a business requires an acquisition o inclede an inpul and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability o create outputs. The definition of the
term C‘puiputs’ is amended fo focus on goods and services provided to customers,
generaling investment income and other income, and it excludes retumns in the form of
lower costs and other economic benefits, The amendments will likely result in more
acquisitions being accounied for as assel acguisitions,

Definition of Material (Amendments to JAS 1 and TAS §) The amendments clarifly
the definition of *material’ and align the definition used in the Conceptual Framework
and the standards, The amendment further clarifies that the reference to obscuring
information addresses situanons in which the effect 15 similar 1o omitting o misstating
that information, and that an entity assesses material in the context of the financial
stmements as a whole., The standand also states that the meaning of “primary users of
general-purpose: financial statements’ to whom those financial statements are directed,
by defining them as “existing and potential investors, lenders and other creditors” that
must rely on general purpose Inancial stilements Tor much of the Dnancial information

ihey need.

Standards and amendments o published standards elfective in the corrent yvear
that are relevant to the Group’s operations (continued )

Revised Concepiual Framework for Financial Reporting (effecuve for annuoal
pericds beginning on or after | January 2020). The [TASE has issued a revised
Conceptual Framework which will be used in standard-setting decisions with immediate
effect. These new standards include increasing the prominence of stewardship in the
objective of financial reporting. It also incledes changes in reinstating prudence as a
component of neutrality. Further key changes include defining a reporting entity, which
may be a legal enfity, or a portion of an entity and revising the definifions of an asset
and a liability as well as removing the probability threshold for recognition and adding
guidance on de-recognition

The standard further includes changes to adding guidance on different measurement
basis and stating that profit of loss is the primary performance indicator and that, in
principle, income and expenses in other comprehensive income should be recyeled
where this enhances the relevance or Taithful representation of the financial stalements

The standard clarifies that no changes will be made to any of the current accounting
standards, However, entities that rely on the Framework in determining their accounting
policies for transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the
accounting standards will need 1o apply the revised Framework from | January 2020,
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Derrimon Trading Company Limited Derrimon Trading Company Limited
Motes (o the Financial Siatemenis Motes to the Financial Siatemenis
31 December 2020 31 December 2020

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) Basis of preparation (continued)
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Standards and amendments (o published standards effective in the currenl year
that are relevant to the Group's aperations (continued)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)
Reporting (effective for annual periods beginning on or afler | Janvary 20000, The
changes in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS
7)

#  modily specific hedge sccounting requirements =0 that entities would apply those
hedge accounting reguirements assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which
the hedged cash flows and cash Mows from the hedging instrument are based will
nol be altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform,

# are mandatory for all hedging relationships that are directly affected by the interest
rate benchmark reform;

*  are not intended to provide relicf from any other consequences arising from interest
rate benchmark reform (if a hedging relationship no longer meets the requirements
for hedge sccounting for reasons olber than those specified by the amendments,
discontinuation of hedge accounting is required); and

* require specific disclosures about the extent to which the entitics' hedging
relationships are affected by the amendments,

The amendments did not result in any matenal effect on the Group's fnancial
slalements,

Standards and amendments (o published standards that are mot vel elMective and
have not been carly adopted by the Group

Reference to the Conceptual Framework = Amendments to IFRS 3 (effectuve for
annual peripds beginning on or after | January 2022} In March 2018, the TASB issued
the 2018 Conceptual Framework and mest references 1o the Framework incleded in
IFRSs were updated to the 2018 Framework at that time. However, paragraph 11 of
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, which continsed to refer to the 1989 Framework, was
not updated as this could have caused conflicts for entities applying IFRS 3. IASB
identificd three possible amendments to IFRS 3 that would update IFRS 3 without
significantly changing its requirements. The changes in Reference o the Conceplual
Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3):

# update [FRS 3 so that it refers to the 20018 Conceptual Framework instead of the
19849 Framework;

*  add to IFRS 3 a requirement thal, for transactions and other events within the scope
of 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21, an scquirer applies [AS 37 or [FRIC 21 (instead of the
Concepiual Framework) to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination; and

¢ add to IFRS 3 an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent
assels acquired in a business combination,

IFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’; (effective for annual periods beginning on or after |
January 20210 In May 2017, the IASE issued IFRS 17 which replaces the current
guidance in IFRS 4. Under IFRS 17, insurance liabilities are to be measured at a current
fulfilment value. The standard also provides a more uniform measurement and
presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to
achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracis,
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Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Motes (o the Financial Siatemenis
31 December 2020
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Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Motes to the Financial Siatemenis
31 December 2020

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective and
have nol been early adopied by the Group (continued)

The amendments in Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current -
Amendments to [AS 1 (cffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
20023y affect only the presentation of liahilitics in the statement of fnancial position -
mol L amount or tming of recognition of any assel, lability income or expenses, or the
information that entities disclose about those items. They:

# clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should be based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting peried and align the wording in all
affected paragraphs o refer to the "right™ to defer settlement by at leasi twelve months
and make explicit that only nghts in place "at the end of the reponting period” should
affect the classification of a liability;

# clarify that classification is unaffected by expectations aboutl whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability; and

* make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assels or services,

Property, Flant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to
TAS 16) (effective for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2022 amends the
standard to prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any procesds from selling items produced while bringing that asset 1o the location and
condition necessary for it o be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an enfity recognises ihe proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those ilems, in profil or loss,

Onerous Confracts — Cost of Fullilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37),
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after | Janvary 2022) specifies that the
‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract”.
Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (examples would be direct labour, materialsy or an allocation of other cosis that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocaton of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued )

Standards and amendments o published standards that are not yet effective and
have not been carly adopted by the Group (continwed )

Annual Improvements (o IFRS Standards 20018=2020 are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, The IASB issued its Annual
Improvemenis o IFRSs 20015-2007 cycle amending a number of standards;

* JFRS 1 ‘First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’ -
Subsidiary as a first-time adopier. The amendment permils a subsidiary that applies
paragraph D1&(a) of IFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation differences using the
amounis reporied by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition (o IFRSs,

¢ [FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - Fees in the “10 per cent” test for derecognition of
financial liabilities. The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it
applies the *10 per cent” 1est in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether o
derecognise a financial Lability. An entity includes only fees paid or received
between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on the other®s behalf.

# [FRS 16 ‘Leases’ - Lease incentives. The amendment 1o Mustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16 removes from ihe example the illusiration of the
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise
because of how lease incentives are illusirated in that example,

¢ JAS 41 “Agriculture’ - Taxation in fair value measurements. The amendment
removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities (o exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value
technigue. This will ensure consistency with the requirements in [FRS 13.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continwed ) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b} Business combination and goodwill (e} Basis of consolidation
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The Company applics the acquisition method in accounting for a business combination,
The consideration transferred by the company 1o obtain control of a subsidiary is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair value of the assets transferred,
liabilities assumed, and the equity inlerests issued by the company,

The Company recognizes idemtifiable asscts acquired and liahilitics assumed in a
business combination regardless of whether they have been previously recognized in the
company’s financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired, and liabilities
assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date Fair value.

Any Goodwill iz stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. Tt is
calculated as the excess of the sum af a) fair value of consideration transferred, b) the
recognized amount of any non-conirolling interest in the acquiree and ¢} acguisition-
date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree, over the acquisition-date
fair values of the identifiable net assets. If the fair values of the identifiable net assets
exceed the sum calculated above, the excess amount, i.e., gain on bargain purchase, is
recognized in profit or loss immediately.

Transaction costs that the Company incurs in connection with a business combination
are expensed immediately.

Mon-controlling interests

Equity in the Company nol attibutable, directly or indirectly, to the Company, is
considered non-controlling interest. When the proportion of the equity held by non-
controlling interest’s changes, the Company adjusts the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-contralling interests 1o reflect the changes i their relanive interest
in the Company, The Company recognizes directly in equity any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received, and attribute it to the shareholders of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the company

and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020, A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the

company. Control s achieved when the group is exposed, or has nghts, w0 vanable

returns from its involvernent with the investee and has the ability 1o affect those reiums

through its power over the investee, Specifically, the group controls an investee, if and

only if, the group has:

*  Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investes)

¢ Exposure, or rights, to varable retums from its involvement with the investee, and

* The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retums

The financial statements of the subsidianes are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases,

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries to
bring its accounting policy in line with the groups accounting policy. All intra-group
assels and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between the members of the group are eliminated in full on consolidation,

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, that is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners, The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in cquity. Gains or losses on disposals o non-controlling interests are also recorded in
eOuiLy.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
o its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fwr value 15 the imital carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained inferest as an associate, joint
venture or fnancial asset. In addinon, any amounts préeviously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related asseis or liabilities, This may mean thal amounis
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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(d) Going concern
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

ify Property, plant and equipment

(e}
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The preparation of financial statements in accordance with [FRS assumes that the
Company and Group will continue in operation for the foreseeable future. This means,
in part, that the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the
stutement of fnancial position assume no Intention or necessity o lquidate or curtail
operations, This is commonly referred to as the going concern basis.

Management has assessed that the Company and Group have the ability to continee a5 a
going concern and has prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis.
The basis of preparation presumes that the company will be able to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the nommal course of business.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reponed in a manner consistent with the internal reporing
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operaling
sepments, has been identified as the Executive Committes that makes strategic
decisions,

The Company has identified the following segments:

Distribution (Household products, chilled and ambient beverages, detergents and bulk
foods);

Wholesale (Trading outlets and supermarkets); and

Other Operations (Manufacwrers of Flavours and Fragrances, pallets and by produects
of wood)

(i} Owned assets:
Items of plant and equipment are stated ot cost or deemed cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable o the acquisiton of the assel. The cost of sellf-constructed assels
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and related costs to put the asset into
service,

The cost of replacing part of an item of plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of an item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
cmbodied within the part will flow to the business and its cost can be measured
reliably. The costs of day-to-day servicing of plant and equipment are recognized
in profit or loss as incurred.

(i) Depreciation
Ttems of property, plant and cquipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see below). Depreciation is calculated on a
reducing balance basis at rates to write off the carrying value of the assets over
their period of expected useful lives, The annual deprecialion rates are as follows:

Buildings 2.5%
Leasehold improvemenis 2.5%
Machinery and equipment 10%
Furniture, fittings and fixtures 20%:
Muotor vehicles 2%
Computer 3335%
Right-of-use Straight-line over the period of the lease term

Ciains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount and are included in the statement of comprehensive income.

Repairs and maintenances are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continwed ) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(g} Financial Instruments ig) Financial Instruments (continued)
Diebt instruments

The Group and Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement

calegorics;

# those to be measured subsaquently al fair value (either through OCT or through profit or
loss), and

# those to be measured at amortised cost,

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial
fszets and the contractual tefms of the cash Nows,

For assets measured al fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCL For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the group has made an irmevocable election at the time of inifal
recognition 1o sccount for the eguity investmemt at far value through other
comprehensive income (FYOCT)

The group and company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business
madel for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group and Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights (o receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the group has ransferred substantially all the nsks
and rewards of ownership,

Measurement
Al initial recognition, the Group and Company measures a financial asset at its fair value

plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are direcily attributable to the acquisition of the financial assel.
Transection costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded denvatves are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Subsaguent measurement of debt instruments depends on the group’s and company’s

business model for managing the assel and the cash flow characteristics of the asset,

There are three measurement calegonies into which the group and company classifies s

debd instruments:

. Amorised cost: Assets that are held for collection of comractual cash flows where
those cash Mows represent solely payments of pnncipal and interest are measured
amortised cost, Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective inferest rate method. Any gain or loss afsing on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gainsf(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
arc presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

. FWOCT: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cagh Nows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets” cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, ane measured at FVOCT, Movements in the carrying amouni
are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of imparment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss, When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gainsflosses), Interest income from these financial assels is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presenfed in other gainsflosses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss,

*  FVYPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amonised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured al FYPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gainsflosses) in the period in wihich it anses.

Impairment

The Group and Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carmed al amortised cost and FVOCL The
impairmient methodology applied depends on whether there has been o significant
increase in credit misk,
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continwed )

(h) Intangible assels
lems of intangible assets represent purchased computer software not integral w
computer hardware, with finite useful lives that are acquired separately and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
i% recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of three years,

{i) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are nod subject o amomisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject o amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving
amount may nol be recoverable. An impairment loss is recogmised for the amount by
which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverahle
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
they are separately identifiable cash Mows (cash-generating units).

(i)  Inventories
Inventories are staled at the lower of cost and nel realizable wvalue, cost being
determined on a first in first out basis. MNet realizable value is the estimate of the selling
price in the ordinary course of the business, less selling expenses,

ik} Receivables

Trade and other receivables are carried at anticipated realizable value. An allowance for
expected credit loss (ECL) of trade and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Company will nod be able 1o collect all amounts due
according to the onginal terms of the receivables. The carrving amount of the assel is
reduced through the wse of this ECL allowance, and the amount of the loss is
recognized in Bad Debr expense in the statement of profit or loss. When trade
receivable is deemed uncollectible, it is wntien off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously wrillen off are recognized as recovery
and credited to bad debt expense in the statement of profit or loss.

Prepayments are partial or full settlements of debt or expenses before the contractually
obligated due date, this includes advances and deposits

iy  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For
the purposes of the cash flow stastement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and im hand and bank overdrafi.

{m) Share capital
Omndinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily redeemable preference shares are
classified as liabilites.

Incremental costs directly atributable o the 1ssue of new ordinary shares or oplions are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

in) Dividends
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in shareholder’s equity in the period in
which they become legally payable. Interim dividends are dwe when declared and
approved by the directors while shareholders approve final dividends at the Annual
Cicneral Mecting. Dividends for the year that are declared after the reporting date are
disclosed in the subsequent events e,

(o) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amontised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of ransaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in ithe income
statement over the period of the bomrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility 1o which it relates.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified
as liabilitics, The dividends on these preference shares are recognised in the income
slalement as inlerest expense.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of tme (o get ready for their intendisd use or sale, are added 1w the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income eamed on the lemporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is dedocted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other bormowing cosis are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(p) Payables

Payables, including provisions, are stated at their nominal value. A provision is
recognised in the statement of financial position when the group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, if it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required io setile the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. If the effect 15 matenal, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the tme value of money, and where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continwed )

ig) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, if it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amwount of the obligation can be made.

i(r)  Fair value of financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contrsct thal gives rise 1o both a lnancial assel of one
enterprise and a financial liability or equity instrument of another enterprise. Financial
assets carried on the statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents
and receivables. Financial liabilities consist of payables, long term loans, directors’
loans, short term loans and due to related companies.

Generally financial instruments are recognized on the statement of financial position
when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. The
particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the respective accounting
policies asseciated with each items.

is) Related party transactions
Related parties:

A party is related to the group, if:

(1) direcily, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with, the group (this includes parents,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries); has an interest in the group that gives it
significant influence over the group; or has joint control over the group;

{1i) the party is an associate of the group;

(1i1) the party is a joint veature in which the group is a venturer;

(1¥) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the group or its parent;

(v} the pariy is a close member of the family of any individual referred 1o in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is the group that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by, or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii)the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the
groaip, of of any company that is a related party of the group.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations betweon
related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
[ty Revenue recognilion

Revenue is recognized when the company satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring the promised goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration the company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods,

The promised goods are transferred when or as the customer obtain control.

Revenue is recognized when the customer obtains control of the goods as described
below:

i.  Ssales
The performance obligation, satsfied at a point-in-time, 1© transfer products 1o
customers. Revenue is recognized when the products are delivered to the
customers, and the customers take control of the produects, and the company has a
present night to payment as evidence by an invoice or the right o invoiced

.  Dividend income
Dividends are recognized when declared, and the right to receive payment is
established.

iii.  Oiher operating income
Includes gains and losses on disposal of assets, rental income received from
invesiment propertics and miscellancous inflows, Income is recognized on the
accrual basis.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues unless collectability is in doubt.
Interest income is calculated is in doubd. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate the gross carrying amount of financial assets.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continwed )

(u) Taxation
Taxation on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current
amd deferred taxes are recognized as income lax expense or benelt in the statement of
comprehensive income except, where they relate to items recorded in shareholders’
equity, they are also charged or credited to shareholders” equity.

(i) Current taxation
Current tax is the expected laxation pavable on the taxable income for the vear,
using tax rates enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any
adjustment to tax payable and fax losses in respect of previous years,

(11} Deferred income laxes
Deferred 1ax liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and habilites and their amounts as measured for tax
purposes, which will result in taxable amounts in fulure periods, Deferred tax assels
are recognized for temporary differences which will result in deductible amounts in
future periods, but only to the extent it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available against which these differemces can be uiilized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o
apply in the period in which the asset will be realized or the liability will be settled

hased on enacted rates,

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the legal right of
offsel exists.

(¥} Foreign corrency translation
Foreign currency transsctions are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing al the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in forcign
currencies are translated into Jamaican dollars at the exchange rate prevailing at the
statement of financial position date; that is, in the case of each currency, the Bank of
Jamaica weighted average buving and selling rates at that date. Gains or losses arising
from fluctuations in the exchange rates are reflected in the statement of comprehensive

INCCHTE,
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liability

except for
(1) Leases of low value assets; and

(it} Leases with a duration of 12 months or less,

IFRS 16 was adopted 1 January 2019 without restatement of comparative figures. The
following policies apply subsequent to the date of initial application, 1| January 2009,

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the
lessor over the lease term, with the discount rate determined by reference o the e
inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not readily determinable, in
which case the group's incremental bormowing rate on commencement of the lease is
used. Variable lease payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability
if they depend on an index or rate. In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease
liability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term.
Other variable lease payments are expensed in the pericd to which they relate,

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:

(1] amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;
(ii) the exercise price of any purchase option gramed in favour of the group if it is
reasonable certain to assess that option;
(iii) any penalties pavable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been
estimated on the basis of termination option being exercised.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

(i) since it does not have recent third-pany financing, uses a build-up approach tha
starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit sk for leases, and
(i) makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, curmency and security.

Right of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for
any lease incentives received, and increased for;

(i) lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;
(i) aimitial direct costs incurmed; and
(iii} the amount of any provision recognised where the company is contractually
required 1o dismantle, remove or restore the leased assel (ypically leasehold
dilapidations).
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continwed ) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

iw) Right-of-use assels and lease liabilities {continued) (w) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continwed )
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Subsequent 1o mital measurement lease liabilities increase as a resull of interest
charged at a constant rate on the balance outstanding and are reduced for lease payments
made. Right-of-use assels are amortised on a siraight-line basis over the remaining term
of the lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, this 15 judged 10
be shorter than the lease term,

Paymenis assopciated with short-termy leases and all leases of low-value assets ane
recognised on a straight-ling basis as an expense in profit or loss, Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets valued as

US55,000 or less when new. The group has no short-term leases or leases for low
valued assets at this time.)

Extension and termination oplions

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment
leases across the group, These are used to maximise operational Nexibility in terms of
managing the assets vsed in the group's operations. The majority of extension and
termination oplions held are exercizable only by the group and not by the respective
lessor,

When the group remegotiates the coniractual terms of a lease with the lessor, the

accounting depends on the nature of the modification:

= if ihe renegoliation resulis in one or more additional assels being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone prnice for the addittonal nghts-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate lease in accordance with the
above policy.

* in all other cases where the renegotiation increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension o the lease term, or one or more sdditional assets being leased),
the lease iability 15 remeasured using the discount rate.

= applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the
samee amdount.

= if the repegotiation resulis in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying
amount of the lease liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion
o reflect the partial or full termination of the lease with any difference recognised in
profit or loss. The lease labdlity is then funther sdjusted o ensure its carryving amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term, with the
modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable on the modification date,
The nght-of-use asset 15 adjusted by the same amount.

The carryving value of lease liabilities is similarly revized when the variable element of
future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised. In both cases an
equivalent adjustment is made 1o the carrving value of the right-of-use asset, with the
revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term.

For contracts that both convey a right 1o the group 1o use an identified asset and require
services to be provided to the group by the lessor, the group has elected to account for
the entire contract as a lease, Le it does not allocate any amount of the contractual
payments to, and account separately for, any services provided by the supplier as part of
the coniract,
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3. Financial risk management 3. Financial risk management (continued)
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The group's aclivities expose it o a vanely of Nnancial risks: market nsk (including fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and secks to minimize potential adverse effects on the group’s financial
performance,

The group's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set
appropriate risk hmits and controls, and o monitor the risks and adherence w limis by
means of reliable and up-to-date information systems. The group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems (o reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best
praclice.

The Board of Directors 15 ultimately responsible for the establishment and oversight of the
group’s risk management framework. The Board provides written principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credin nsk
and investment of excess liguidity.

Audit Committes

The Board of Directors has also established an Audit Committes to assist in managing the
Group’s risk profile. This Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with
the Group's risk management policies and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework., This committee is also assisted by Internal Audit that reports to the Auodit
Committee after it underiakes regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management conirols and
procedures, especially over inventories and receivables,

@) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrurment fails o meet its contractual obligations, Credit risk arises from
cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as
ouistanding receivables from credit sales.

Risk management
Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analysed individually for credit worthiness before the group’s standard payment and

delivery terms and conditions are offered,

If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no
independent rating, management assesses the credit guality of the customer,
considering its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk
limits are =¢1 based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the
board. The compliance with credit limits by customers is regularly monitored by
Management,

(#) Credit risk (continued )

Management determines concentrations of credit risk by monilorng the credit-
worthiness rating of existing customers and through a monthly review of the trade
receivables ageing analysis, In monitoning the customers” credit risk, customers are
proaped according (o their credit characteristics. Customers that are graded as "high
risk™ are placed on a restricted customer list, and future credit sales are made only with
approval,

Security
The group and the company does not hold any collateral as .mzcurity.

Impairment of financial assels

The group and the company has one type of financial asset that is subject to the
expected credit loss model:

* trade receivables

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of
IFRS 9, the identified impairment boss was immaterial,

Trade receivables

The group and the company applics the IFRS % simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables.

To measure expected credit losses on a collective basiz, trade receivables are prouped
based on similar credit risk and ageing.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36
months before 31 December 20019 or 31 December 20200 respectively and the
corresponding historical credit losses expenienced within this perod. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the cusiomers to setile the receivables, The group and the
company has identified the GDP, inflation and the unemployment rate of the countries
in which it sells its goods and services 1o be the most relevant factors, and accordingly
adjusts the historical oss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

Derrimon Trading Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2020 83/



Page 33
Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Motes (o the Financial Siatemenis
31 Decemhber 2020

3. Financial risk management (continmed)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Omn that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 20019 was

Derrimon Trading Company Limited

Motes to the Financial Siatemenis
31 December 2020
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3. Financial risk management {continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

determined as follows for trade receivables:

The Group
Moaore than More than Miore than
30 days past 60 days past 90 days past
31 December 2020 Current il e due Todal
L LR L] ' £ 000 L5000
Expected Joss ke s% % 1% 13% 8%
{iroas carrying amount = rade
receivables L ek Y 3310773 115312 10 605 R95 0
Lioss albvavance 16612 30380 12,684 13,502 TITTR
More than More than Miore than
M days past 60 days past W) days past
31 December 20119 Current i il duse Tl
S0 LR L] ' F000 S0
Expected loss rae 1% % % 9% 5
Ciroas carrying amount = trade
receivables A6661 330,000 7,652 102571 s A5
Loss albvwance 4 656 14,517 4,397 5333 12412
The Company
Mlore than Mare than Nlore than
M days past 60 days pust 90 days past
31 December 2020 Current due s fiTTs Toetal
5NN 3[R S0y 500 5 IHHY
Expcied Joss e 15 1% 13% 15% %
(ifoss Carrying amounl — trade
receivables 176,066 01,171 01 479 E6.94T 756,613
Loss allowance 8,282 33,661 11,554 13,042 66,539
Mlore than Mare than More than
30 duys pust 60 duys pust 0 days pasd
31 December 2009 Current dure s i 1T Total
5" (MY 3[R S0y 500 L
Expicand Joss e 2% &% R334 10% 4%
(ifoss Carrying amounl — trads
receivables 561 418 1 1458 63,224 01 504 B27,734
Loss allowance 11,228 6,530 5.264 9,299 32381
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The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 reconcile 1o
the opening loss allowances as follows:

The Group
Trade Trade
receivables receivahles
2020 2019
$'000 $'000
Opening loss allowance 32,812 33,233
Increase in loss allowance recognised in il or
o g the yeur gn profi 37,799 20,335
Bad debis written offfirecovered) duning the year 3167 (M. 756)
Closing balance at end of year 73778 32812
The Company
Trade Trade
reccivables reccivables
220 2019
£°000 000
Opening loss allowance 32,380 32,380
Increase in loss allowance recognised in pmﬁt aor
loss during the vear 35,690 20355
Bad debts recovered during the year (1.531) {29,355)
Closing balance at end of year 5,539 A2 R0

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the group and company, and
a failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater than 90 days past due.
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3. Financial risk management (continued ) 3, Financial risk management (continued)
{a) Credit risk (continued) (a) Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
Impaicment losses on trade receivables are presented as nel impairment losses within

operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited The following table summarizes the Group and Company’s credit exposure for trade
against the same line item. receivables at their carrying amounis, as categorized by customer secior.
As at 31 December 2020 trade receivables had lifetime expected credit losses of SNil The GGroup The Company
(20019: Nil). 2020 2019 2020 2019
pALLLY paLL) $'000 $'000
Net impairment losses on financial assets recognised in profit or loss Supermarket chains 156,056 174,439 156,006 174,439
During the year, the following losses were recognised in profit or loss in relation to Whaolesale and retail
impaired financial asseis: distnbautors 498,750 655,532 498,730 GO0, 164
Covernment entities 9,748 15,064 9,748 18,064
The Group Manufactures 135,884 T7.600 - -
2020 2009 Other 29,318 34,236 29,318 28086
£'000 $'000 829,796 959,926 693,912 B20. 808
Impairment losses Owerseas 66,1340 6926 62,701 6,926
Total (note 12) 895,926 O, 552 736,613 B2T. 734
- movement in loss allowance for trade receivables 37.799 29,335
Net impairment losses on financial assets 37,799 29,335 Overseas customers mainly relate w customers in the United States and the United

Kingdom and represent approximately 7% (2019-0.72%) of the total balance. The
curmencies of these countnes are considered stable and consistently appreciate against

The Company
20 019 the Jamaican dollar, and no risk of any significant loss is anticipated in this category of
LR L[] SO0 OVErSeas Cuslomers,
Impairment | There is no change, from the prior year, in the Group's exposure to credit risk or the
- movement in loss allowance for trade receivables 35,690 20,335 manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
Met impairment losses on financial assets 35,650 289,335
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3. Financial risk management {continwed)

i(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group is unable to meet its payment obligations associated
wilh its financial liabilies when they fall due. Prodent liquidity risk management implies
maintmmng sufficient cash and murketable secunities, the avalability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credin facilities and the ability o close oul market
posItions,

Liguidity risk management process
The group’s liguidity management process includes:
(i) Monitoring fuiere cash fows and liquidity on a daily basis,
(i) Maintaining marketable and diverse assets that can easily be liguidated as protection
against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;
(i) Mantaining a committed line of credit;
(iv) Optimising cash returns on investment.
Undiscounted cash Mows of Nnancial Habilities
The maturity profile of the group's financial liabilities at year end on contractual
undiscounted payments was as follows:

The Group:
lind 312 lias Contraciual Carrying
months months Years cashilows Ao
2020
£ 000 £ 000 §000 §"000 $'000
Lezase Labilities 65,751 T28.557 1,723,247 2517555 1602 905
Long term loans #1698 244748 2,137,536 2663982 2,145 620
Payables TIB 108 - - T18.109 TI8.109
Short-term losns E74.009 217,132 - 10 241 1056013
Bank overdrafi 56,048 - - 56,0498 560498
|95 665 1,190,537 060, THS TAE6.985 5,718,745
209
Lease liabilities 34400 50,580 .55 1.3165974 1070873
Long term loans 30,230 G50 2,714,860 2,835,780 1,853,451
Payables 96546 . . GT6.546 Gi6846
Short-term loans 538476 - - 538476 536316
1.579.952 471670 1016454 5608076 4,437 486

Aszgets available to meet all of the Labilities and o cover financial liabilities include
Cash at bank and in hand and guarantes from the ultimate parent company.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

(h) Liguidity risk (continued)

Undizcounted cash Mows of financial liabilities (continued )

The matunty profile of the company's financial habilines at yvear end on contractual

ic)

undizscounted payments was as follows:

The Company:
1103 3o 12 lio5 Contractual ~ Carrying
maonths months Years cashflows amount
20
$7000 £7000 S"000 S°000 $'000
Lease liabilities 590654 T8 408 143517 22001 ,959 109,354
Long term loans .771 239878 2325771 2645400 23M 415
Payables 649,903 - - 649,903 649903
Short-term boans R74.008 217232 = 1,040,241 1056013
Bank ovendraft 56,095 - . 56,098 ShEE
1,715 1165518 3,760,288 6,544,621 5,500,803
2019
$"000 7000 S" 000 LR L S'000
Lease liabilitics 28,040 85,746 1,084,012 1,197,798 74418
Long term |oans 20,907 59,722 2683 872 2,805,501 1831083
Payables S02.850 = - 2,850 02 B30
Short-term boans 537,040 537,040 535,000

1,497,837 175,468 3760884 5443189 4243351

Assets available to meet all of the habilies and to cover financial habilities nclude
Cash at bank and in hand and guaraniee from the uwliimate parent company.

Market risk

The group takes on exposure (o market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will Muctuate because of changes in markel prices,
Market nsks maunly anse from changes in and foreign currency exchange rates (see 3c(i))
and interest rates (see i) The objective of market risk management is (o manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while oplimizing the retum.
Market nisk exposures are measured using semsitivity analysis. There has been no
significant change in exposure o market rfsks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the nisk.

/ 88 Derrimon Trading Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2020

Derrimon Trading Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2020 89/



Page 30 Page 40)

Derrimon Trading Company Limited Derrimon Trading Company Limited
MNotes to the Financial Statements Motes to the Financial Statements
MM December 2020 31 December 2020
3. Financial risk management (continued) 3. Financial Risk Management (continued)
() Market risk (continued) (d) Capital management
(i} Currency risk The Group defines capital as equity and total borrowings, The Group manages ils
capital, of 3.8 billion o support and be responsive (o opportunities for its current
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial insfrument growih stralcgy and expansion plans and o maintain its normal operations and remain
will Muctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, compliant with vanous covenants and restrictive rules and regulations of the industry

and the financial environment in which it operates.
The Group is exposed o foreign exchange risk arising from exposure primarily to the US

dollar and Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises primarnily from transactions for purchases, Capital Management Strategies
sales and investments. The Statement of Financial Position for the Group as at 31
December 2020 includes net foreign assetsfliabilites) of USS338.814 and €17.613 (200% The Group's objectives when managing capital are o safeguard the Company’s
(US51,870,000) and €17,022) in respect of such transactions. ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide specific hurdle returns for its
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to fluctuations in the exchange rates of the structure to reduce the cost of capital as well as meet extermally imposed capital
currencies held by the company before tax, with all other variables held constani. requirements, The Board of Directors moniters the retum on capital, which the Group
defines as net operating income divided by total sharcholders® equity.
Change in exchange rate 2020 2019
SO0 SO0 Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital based on the
. : 6% (3019 - (5% gearing ratio, This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by capital as defined
R""lmfm { i ok (7.083) 12,400 above, Total bormowing is calculated as current and non=-current bormowings, as shown
De valuation 2% (2019 - (5%:) 2362 £12 4000 . . . . o .
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Capital is calculated as equity, as
(i) Interest rate risk shown in the statement of financial position plus total borrowings. The management

of the Company remains deliberate in the way il funds ns growth strategy and given
the present economic environment and the general reduction in the cost of capital in
the markel; management continues o adjust major debs from a bullel repayment
structure to that of amortization and lengthening of tenors,

Interest rate nsk 12 the nsk that the valee or future cash Mows of a (nancal
instrument will fluciuate becavse of changes in market interest rates. Floating rate
instruments expose the Group to cash [low interest risk, whereas Nxed interest rate
instruments expose the Group to fair value interest risk.

The Group The Company
The Group eams interest on its long term investments at a fixed rate with durations of 2020 2019 2020 2019
between 2 and over 3 vears for repricing, $'000 $'000 £°000 £°000
The Group eams interest on its short term deposits disclosed in Note 23. As these polbomowings CXclUding 3401633 2389767 3385448 2,366,083
depaosits have a short term o maturity and are constantly reinvested at curment market ease nbtities) )
rates, they are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk. Equity and total borrowing 4 827.335 1,568,435 4761570 3549361

Cearing ratio

The Group incurs interest on its bormowings disclosed in Note 26. These bormowings 0% Lk % GT®

are ai fixed rates, and expose the Group to fair value imterest rate risk. Interest rate
fuctuations are nod expected o have a matenal effect on the net results or
stockholders” equity, The Group analyses ils inferest rate exposure anising from
borrowings on an ongoing basis, taking into consideration the options of refinancing,
renewal of existing positions and altemative financing.
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued)
(¢} Fair value estimates

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability setiled,
betwesn knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Marketl prce is
used to determine fair value where an active market (such as a recognized stock
exchange) exists as it is the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument.

The amount incleded in the financial statements for cash at bank and in hand,
receivables, payables, short term loans and bank overdraft reflect their approximate fair
values because of the short-term maturity of these instruments.
The fair value of long-term loans approximate amortised costs.

The fair values of directors’ account and due to related companics could not be
reasonably assessed as there are no set repayment lerms.,
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies

The group and company makes estimates, assumptions and judgements that affect the
reported amounts of, and disclosures relating to, assets, labilities, income and expenses
reported in these financial statements. Amounts and disclosures based on these estimates
assumptions and judgements may be different from actual outcomes, and these differences
may be reported in the financial statements of the next financial year. Estimates and
Judgements are based on historical expenence and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances, and are continually
evaluated.

(i) Impairment of financial assels
The loss allowances for linancial assels are based on assumplions about sk of defaull
and expected loss rates. The group and company uses judgement in making these
assumplions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the group
and company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates al the end of cach reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs
used are disclosed in the Credit risk note.

(i1} Income taxes

Estimates and judgements are required in determining the provision for income taxes.
The tax liahility or asset anising from certain fransactions or events may be unceriain in
the ordinary course of business. In cases of such uncertainty, the group and company
recognises liabilities for possible additional taxes based on its judgement. Where, on the
basiz of a subsequent determination, the final rax outcome in relation (o such mallers is
different from the amount that was initially recognised, the difference will impact the
current and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

(iii) Depreciable assets
Estimates of the useful life and the residual value of property, plant and equipment are
required in order (o apply an adequate rate of transferming the economic benefils
embodied in these assets in the relevant penods. The group and company applies a
variely of methods in an effert to arrive al these estimales from which actual results may
vary. Actual varations in estimated vseful lives and residual values are reflected in
profit or loss through impairment or adjusted depreciation provisions.

(iv) Recognition and measurement of intangible assets
The recognition and measurement of intangible assets, other than goodwill, in a business
combination, involve the unhzation of valuation technigues. These intangibles may be
market related, consumer related, contract based or technology based. For significant
amounts of intangibles ansing from a business combination, the group and company has
utilized independent professional advisors to assist management in determining the
recognition and measurement of these assets,
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M December 2020 £, Property, plant amd equipment
The Group:
4. Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies (continued) m w""’”‘“ 'I_.L" M“""" ‘Trh Compater Toial
. . $'000 $'000 §000 000 000 $'000
(v) Valuation of financial instruments Comt -
are based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial Addithors . 23 154 11,288 17596 10868 2543
instruments, the group and company determines fair values using valuation technigues. Disposss i i . (1,500 {1.80m
Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, 31 Docember M8 88412 217495 748 123742 P THE 2
comparison o similar instruments for which market observable prices exist and other Additioes . 0,01 49,47 2,860 10140 100631
valuation models. Assumplions and inputs used in valuation technigues include rsk-free 31 Docember X120 6,113 146,421 weM 1w 6064 91463
and benchmark inferest rates, credit spreads and other premium used in estimating Dpociatio -
discount rates. 1 Jamsry 1019 11,350 10,148 144,10 AN 15,048 247,574
Charge Tor the year (10 1] 4047 423491 17 AR 1.3 7 D
Considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to arive at estimates of Pslieved on Sapoiali _ _ 7549 (1.245) . wa9m
fair values. Consequently, the estimates armived at may be significantly different from 31 Dexember W16 12340 14,800 o o8.554 19,891 WA A
the actual price of the instrument in an arm"s length transaction, Chacgs for the year 1002 641 MATE 14006 |LAET FPETE
31 December 3130 13,342 30,443 249385 £3,550 0778 83T
Mt ook value -
31 Dhecember 2030 £3.791 34,078 1£1,71% 42012 24,386 437,783
31 Devemider 20014 3042 HI2 157,295 A5 555 15005 443476
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5 Property, plant and equipment
The Company:

ot -
I Jansmary 2019
Adjustments prior year
Additions
1] Drecember 2019
Addtions
31 Drecemnber NN
I Jamsmary 20019
Adjustments prior year
Charge For the year
31 December 2019
Charge for the year
31 December 2030
MNet ook value -
3] Decembeor 2000
31 Doccmber 2019
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Land and  Leaschold  Fummitere &  Molor
Husdding  Improvensents  Fisiures Vehiches  Uenputier Tsal
000 000 5000 7000 LR 000
62,009 128,125 206,506 78,2458 17971 SELE69
. {5313 {1,612y TR {65 {1,426)
. 0007 13,222 3,995 L1867 49,091
62009 147,601 308,116 3,000 TR G5
il A2R7 27150 pIEL ] TIEE 73,504
62 THI 174488 135,275 RS 458 40657 TOM,128
B8 6,771 131,087 41,273 LT M2 400
172 (L7971 (50160 (1147} 55 9. 798)
1000 3,590 36,000 HTER 1679 51,067
1014 7,564 162,811 47914 1673 245,159
{2 4,502 17.724 7515 1,700 32244
11,1364 E IRLS5 36 5540 18436 377400
51,584 168,122 154,739 30,059 2 426,725
51,485 140,057 145,305 5015 13033 3RS375
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. Intangible assels
Group Company
Goodwill Brand Total Goodwill Brand Tatal
L3 5 § $ 5 5
Cosl =
| January 2019 33220 0425410 g75 761 33,200 - 131N
Addition, Busines
Acquisition 148,900 256,523 405423 - - -
Other adjustments - (942541)  (942,340) - i -
31 December 2019 and
31 Drecembser 2020 1820120 256,523 438643 33,220 - 33z

The Group continued to use the name, Sompars Cash and Carry 1o brand s1x (6) of it retal
outlets and the name, Select Grocers, for it supermarkel. The business acquisitions of
Caribbean Flavours and Fragrances Limdled and Woodcats Inermational limited provided
intangible assets in the form of fechmical formulae and special customer relationships; and
general goodwill, respectively.

These intangibles are assessed to have indefinite useful lives and their useful lives are
dependent on the useful life of the cash-generating unit (CGLUT) 1o which they are allocated.

Impairment tests for goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis or when
events of changes in circumstances indicate the carrving value may be impaired. This requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash generasting unit (CGLN o which goodwill
is allocated. The recoverable amount is usually determined by reference to the value in use.
Eztimating the value in use requires the Group 1o make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the CGU and also to choose an appropriate discount rate in order to
cilculate the present value of those future cash Mows,

For the current period, after review, analysis and assessment, management is of the opinion, that
there is no impairment in the total value of intangibles, including poodwill, as the recoverable
arroents are higher than the carrving amenis,
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7. Investment in subsidiaries and joint veniure 7. Investment in subsidiaries and joint venture (continued)
The Company As at December 31, 2020, the Company has holdings of 62.02% and 100% of the issued
Investment in Subsidiares and Joint Venture 2021 2019 shares of Caribbean Flavours and Fragrances Limited (CFFL) and Woodcats International
5000 $°000 Limited (WIL) respectively.
Caribbean Flavours & Fragrances Limited 438,722 438,722
Woodcats International Limited 355,000 355,000 CFFL: Summarized financial information as at December 31, 2020
Long-term Investment 148,819 148,819
Ralance at the end of the year 042,541 942,541 2020 2019
500D LA
Since March 2017, the Company has a 60% interest in Select Grocers, an unincorporated Dividends recerved from subsidiary 14.616 12,432
business, Select Grocers 15 operated as an “wpscaled”™ supermarket positioned 1o capture the Current assets 529,080 463,587
affluent middle classes, There was no change in the strategic direction, management or Cash and cash equivalents incleded in current assets 295,426 225,653
operation of this entity during the year. Non-current assets 105,936 99,634
. . Current liabilities 57,957 50,880
Select Grocers: Summarized financial information as at 31 December 2020, Current financial liabilities, excluding trade and other payables
and provision, included in carrent liabilities 6,725 6,200
020 2019 Non-current liabilities 87,062 82,163
Dividends recesved from joint operation : - Revenue 593,753 462,462
Current assets 186,327 163,225 Depreciation and amortization (including rights of use) 13,969 12,068
Cash and cash equivalents included in current assels 165, 23,838 Interest income 1.206 1.579
Current financial liabilities, excluding trade and other payables Profit or loss from continuing operations 96,512 36,807
and pravision, included in current liabilities 27,246 - Post-tax profit from continuing operations £2,299 31,500
Mon=current liabilities 164.549 202,329 Testal EDII'lpI'I:}I-I:I'.I."i:i‘r'-I: income legg 3] 5000
Revenue BRI, T45 619,968
Depreciation and amoenization 36,567 14,450
Interest expense (including lease expense) (27.957) (28,034)
Profit or loss from continuing operations 29,562 32,840
Post-tax profit or loss from continuing operations 29,562 32,840
Total comprehensive income 29,562 32,840
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7. Investment in subsidiaries and joint venture (continued)

Woodcats International Limited: Summarized financial information as at December

9. Right-of-use assets and related lease obligations

(i) Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Position

31, 2020
The Statement of Financial Position shows the following amounts relating to leases: -
2019 2019 Right-of-use asset
000 $'000
Current assets 255,831 202,430 The Group The Company
Cash and cash equivalents included in current assets 0,133 f,535 m :1“0'&!:] m :lﬂ[:]:
Hm-cuw_ a-‘-ﬁﬂ“'i 190,526 127,526 Balance as at beginning of the year 1,039,077 - 945,17 -
Cureut kakalities AT S Additions 629,24 1,135,695 540,81 1,036,097
Current financial liabilities, excluding trade and other payables Disposals {%‘.: R (6. T
and provision, included in current liabilities 11,382 4,114 po ) : )
Non-current liabilities 124,982 33,760 Remeasurement based on varable . ) S )
Revenue - S04 EGTT Ameortisation (188.25¢  (96,618) (18285  (90918)
Depreciation and amortization 1L114 8,753 Balance as at end of year 1487435 1039077 1,302,032 _ 945,179
Interest income 4 163
Interest expense (9.529) (30d) Lease liabilities
Income tax cxpense (5, 164) (10,1743
Profit or loss from continuing operations 22929 53979 The Group The Company
Post-tax profit or loss from continuing operations 17,765 43,805 2020 2019 2020 2019
Total comprehensive incomse 17,765 43 E05 5'000 5000 5000 $'000
Balance as at end of year 1,602,905 1,070,873 1,409,354 974,418
Current (165538)  (70.601) (153,174 (66,302
i Investments Mon-current 1,437 367 1000272 1,256,180 D08, 116
The Group The Company (i} Amounts recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
2020 2019 2020 2019 The Statement of Comprehensive Income shows the following amounts relating o
S'000 51000 5000 57000 leases:
Equity investments fair valued .
through profit or loss 4,744 4,956 4,744 4,956 T""Eﬁ'ﬁ“" T ';‘;;'““-"
Sml_ja Invesiments Jamaica $'000 $7000
Limited 158,951 136,023 - - Amortisation charge of right-of-use assets (included in
163.695 142,979 4,744 4,936 administrative expenses) 188,254 182,854
Interest expense (included in finance cost) 113,358 &7.091
Lease liability payment concession (30,204} (30,204)
Effect of foreign exchange 64,202 64,202
The Group  The Company
2019 201%
$' 00 £'000
Amortisation charge of right-of-use assets (included in
administrative expenses) T 90918
Interest expense (included in Anance cost) 84,741 T8, 359
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9. Right-of-use assets and related lease obligations (continued)

{iii) Amounts recognized in the Statement of Cash Flows

The Group The Company The Grounp The Company

2020 2020 2019 2019
7000 S'000 000 £°000
Total cash outflows for
leases 150,391 139057 1569497 61,679

10. Deferred tax assets/{liabilities)

Deferred tax asset is calculated in full on all temporary differences under the liability
method using the applicable wax rate.

Deeferred tax assets recognised on the Statement of Financial Position are as follows;

The Group The Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
5000 57000 £'0040 57000
Deferred 1ax
assets/{liabilities) 9,859 {4.214) 15,891 5

The movement on the net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) balance is as follows:

The Group The Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£1000 £ 000 £ 000 £"000
Net (liabilities Vassets at the
beginning of year 4,214) (2,900 3
Deferred tax
credited/(charged) to profit
and loss (Note 28) 14,073 (1.314) 18886 5
Mt assetailiabdlities) ai the
end of year 9,859 (4,214) 18,891 5
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10, Deferred tax assetsf{liahilities) (continued)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is attributable to the following items:
The Group The Company
2020 019 - 2020 2019
£'000 $"000 57000 S 000
Deferred tax assetsf{liabilites):
Property, plant and
equi pavent (18,764) (4,214) (12,289) 5
Interest receivable (44)
Right of use asset, net of
lease obligations 28,068 - 26,830 -
Interest payable 4,350 - 4,350 -
Unrealised foreign
exchange gain (3,751 - - -
Met deferred tax
asseta(liabilities) at end of
year 9,859 {4,214) 18,891 5
The amounts shown in the Statement of Financial Position include the following:
The Group The Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £°000 £7000 £7000
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
to be recovered:
- after more than 12 months 9,859 (4,214) 18,891 5
- within 12 months - - - .
9,859 (4,214) 18,891 3
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31 December 2020
11. Inventories
The Group The Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 000 000 £'000
Sampars wholesale outlets and
Select Grocers, grocery and
household items £99 543 636,764 899 543 636,764
Wholesale bulk commaodity food
items 1,076,391 1114088 1,076,391 1.114,088

Subsidiaries: lavours and

fragrances and pallet inventories 210,626 241,322 -
2,186,560 1,992,174 1,975,934 1,750,852

For year ended 31 December 2020, inventorics valuing 523,904,000 (2019: $29,335,000)
were wrillen off to the statements of comprehensive income for the Group and 51,604,000
(2019: 53,339,000 for the Company.

12. Receivables
The Group The Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
L1 1] 000 S'000 SH00d
Trade 895,926 966,852 756,613 §27,734
Other 134,251 029 82,957 449, 881
Deposit on business
acquisition 918411 - 918411 -
| 248 558 1,065,881 1,757,981 BT7.615
Less: Provision for
expected credit loss (73.778) (32,812) (66,539) {32,381)
1,874 810 1,033,069 1,691,442 B45.234

Deposit represents amount paid to acquire a Supermarket located in Brooklyn, Mew
York. Derrimon Trading Company Limited will own controlling stake in Mamock LLC,
a domestic corporation formed under the law of the Swue of New York, 1o operate the
business.

The transaction was consummaled in January 2021, See Note 35,
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13. Cash and cash equivalents
The Group The Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 000 8" 000 S'000
Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank F10,321 307,729 359975 304,916
Cazh in hand 188911 201,898 121,893 186,630
559,232 509627 481,868 491,546
Short term deposits
Mayberry Investiments
Limited 383 6,863 385 6,865
Scotia Investment Funds 56,261 35,162 . .
Jamaica Money Market
Brokers Limiled 25648 21,531 - -
MNCB Capital Markeis
Limited 33448 21,189 1,853 1,636
Maybermy Structured:
Corporate Paper 20053 22873 20053 17,873
157,795 137,620 22.291 26,374
717,027 647,247 504,159 517.920

The weighted average effective interest rate on Jamaican dollar and US dollar shor term
deposits was 1.1% (2019 - 2%) and 0.098% (2019 - 1%) respectively. These represent call

deposits which are repayable on demand.
14. Share capital

Authorised-
Ordinary shares of no par value

Iszued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of no par valee

2020 2019
N of shares  No. of shares

2,733,360,670  2,733,360,670
000 000

140,044 140,044
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15, Capital reserves 18. Long term loans
e e T
o 2020 2019 2020 2019 $'000 $'000 $°000 $*000
aagoce st e bepumning el end ol e e 638 9ie  oas3 94638 Mayberry Investments Limited  (3) 38213 92380 38213 92,380
¥ : : : Mayberry Investments Limited i(b) 191,952 122,169 191,952 122,169
Bank of Nova Scotia Jamaica Limited ic) 3613 3,565 3613 3,565
Mational Commercial Bank Jamaicald)
16. Investmenl reserve Limited 1,289 1,489 1,289 1,489
First Global Bank Limited e} - 1.414 - 1.414
The Group The Company First Global Bank Limited (f 1,062 1,685 1.062 | 685
2020 2019 2020 2019 First Global Bank Limited g 255250 272,903 255,250 272,903
$7000 £7000 5000 5000 Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited th 212537 227264 212,537 227,264
Balance at the beginning and end of the Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited i) £9.599 08,160 80,509 0%, 160
year 614 614 614 614 Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited i 19,127 20,271 19,127 20,271
Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited k) 318,896 338470 318,896 338,470
17. Non-controlling interest National Commercial Bank Jamaica(l)
Limited - 133 - 133
The Group JN Bank Limited {m) 4,552 5,256 4,552 5,256
2020 2019 JN Bank Limited i(n) 3,515 4,018 31515 4,018
7000 £° 0000 JN Bank Limited (o) 5,440 6,214 5440 6,214
Balance at beginning of the year 154,844 162,597 IMMB Bank (Jamaica) Limited (p) 214390  2B5,694 214,390 285,692
Share of profit for the year 31,255 11, %64 9% Redeemable Preference Shares  (q) 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000
Dividends paid by subsidiary (7,864) {8.53%) Jamaica Money Market Bank Limited{r) 120,000 - 120,000 -
Other movement dunng the year - (11,179 Barita Investments Limited () SO0,000 = SO0,000 -
Balance at end of the year 178,235 154,844 First Global Bank Limited {t) 2,077 4,833 - -
Bank of Nova Scotia Jamaica Limited (u) 6,614 7,537 - -
Bank of Mova Scotia Jamaica Limited {v) 3,0 4421 - -

Bank of Nova Scotia Jamaica Limited {w) 4,400 5575 - -
2345620 1853451 2329435 1,831,083

Less: Current portion (179.231) (122,448)  (166,847)  (119,629)
2 166,389 1,731,003 2,162 588 1711454

{a} This loan, which was reccived September 2019, is a Revolving Line of Credit, which is
denominated in Jamaican dollars was received Seplember 2019, attracts interest at 7.5%
per annum and is repayable in March 2021, The loan is secured by the following:

(i) Promissory Note and loan agreement for a Revolving Line of Credit of $100M.
(ii) First legal charge over certain securities,

(b) This loan, which is denominated in Jamaican dollars, represents a margin facility and
alracts interest at 12.5% per annum. The margin facility is sscured against securities,
credit balances, commaodities or contracts relating thereto and all other property
belonging 1o the company in which it may have an interest.
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18. Long term loans (continued)

{c) The original loan of $10M was received in October 2016 is unsecured, attracts interest at
8.A9% per annum and was repavable over 72 equal monthly instalments.

(d} This loan, which is denominated in Jamaican dollars, was received in July 2016, attracts
interest at 9.4% per annum and is repayvable over 72 equal monthly instalments,

{e) This loan, which is denominated in Jamaican dollars, was received in September 20035,
attracted interest at 10% per annum and was repavable over 60 equal monthly
instalments. This loan was repaid during the year.

(f) This loan, which is received in June 2016, attracts interest at 10¢% per annuum and is
repayable over 60 equal monthly instalments, The loan is secured by Bill of Sale over a
2007 Isuzu FRE Motor Truck. Assignment of comprehensive insurance over the full
insurable value,

(2} This term loan facility, which was obtained to refinance existing loans, was received in
October 2019, anracts interest af 7.25% per annom and is repavable over 108 equal
monthly instalments.

The loan is secured by the following:
Facility agreement between Derrimon Trading Company Limited, Sagicor Bank Jamaica
Limited, First Global Bank Limited for a total of 35350M supporting by the following:
(i) Pan Passu agreement between Derrimon Trading Limited and jointly with
Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited, First Global Bank Limited,
(ii) Debenture of the company’s fixed and floating assets.
(ii1) Demand mongages over certain residential properties located at Ziadie Gardens
St Andrew, Volume 1489-Folio 647 and Volume 1489 Folio 648,

(h) This term loan facility which was obtained to refinanced existing loan was received in
July 2018, attracts interest at 7.25% per annum and is repayable over 96 equal monthly
instalments.

(i) This term loan facility, which was obtained 10 undertake the renovation of the Sampars
Stores and Information Technology projects was received in October 2019, attracts
interest al 7.25% per annum and is repayable over 96 equal monthly instalments,

(j) The original loan of $21M, which was received in June 2019 and used to finance the
purchaze of Woodcats International Limited, atiracts interest at 7.25% per annum and is
repayable over 120 equal monthly instalments.

ik} The original loan of $355M, which wius received in Apnl 2009 and used o refinance the
bridge loan to purchase of Woodcats International Limited, attracts interest at 7.25% per
annum and is repayable over 120 egual monthly instalments of 54.167.736.96.
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18. Long term loans (continued)

(1) This loan, which 15 denominated in Jamaican dollars, was received in June 2014,
attracted interest ot 12% per annum and was repavable over 72 equal monthly
instalments. This loan was repaid during the year.

(m) This loan, which was received in July 2018 and used to purchase a Shacman Motor
Trucks, attracts interest at %.75% per annum and is repayable over 84 equal maonthly
instalments.

(n} This loan, which was received in July 2008 and used to purchase a Shacman Motor
Truck, attracts interest at 9.75% per annum and 15 repayable over ¥4 equal monthly
insialmenis.

(o) This loan, which was received in November 2018 and used to purchase a 2013 F3000
Shacman Panel Motor Truck, atracts interest at 9.75% per annum and 15 repayable over
84 equal monthly instalments. The loan is secured by promissory note of $6.94M and
better of undertaking and Lien in favour of IN Bank Limited for a Shacman Panel Truck.

(p} This term loan Facility which was obtained o provide working capital was received in
May 2019, 15 unsecured, anracts interest at 7.75% per annum and 15 repayable over 84
equal monthly instalments.

(q) The 9% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares were issued in January 2018, The
note will be assessed by shareholders through Mavberry Investments Limited
(Arranger). The issuer reserves the nght to allot shares to Applicants in its sole and
absolute discretion. The tenure is 36 months and the shares will be issued at a price of
52.00 per share at par. Interest is due quarterly and principal 15 due on matunty.

Interest rate shall be 9% per annum for the first 2 years and ™) days WATBY + 2.5% per
annum for the third year,

(r) This term loan facility, which was obtained 1o provide working capital was received in
September 2020, 15 unsecured, attracts interest at 8.25% per annum and 15 repavable over
84 equal monthly instalments including a moratorium for the first six months,

(=) This loan, which is Fixed rate bond placement facility was recedved in October 20040 is
unsecured, attracts interest at % per annum. Interest on loan is paid monthly and
principal is due upon matunty at October 1, 2025,

(i) This loan, which was received in August 2016, atiracts interest of 8.35% per annum,
repayable over 60 months in equal instalments and is secured by a lien on the motor
vehicle.

(u} The loan, which was received in April 2019, attracts interest at 7.49% per annum and is
repayable over 84 months in equal instalments of 5121, 1446.

(v} The loan, which was received in Apnl 2019, attracts interest at ©.00% per annum and is
repayable over 60 months in equal instalments of 51 10,000,
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18, Long term Loans (continwed) 19. Payables
(w) The loan, which was received in April 2019, attracts interest at 7.50% per annum and is The Group The Company
repayable over 48 months in egual instalments of 598,712, 2020 209 2020 201%
5 M) S'000 5000 LR
Loans (M) & (g) are substantially secured by the following: - Loscal payvables and accruals
(1) A Debenture from the Borrower in favour of the Agent for an on behalf of the , 484,683 762,848 431,024 700,135
Lenders incorporating: Foreign trade payables 219,607 194,851 209,872 189,841
) A fixed ch i ant and cqui ] Staff related payables 2,965 6951 691 5,339
a) A fixed charge over all its property, plant and equipment; an Statutory liabilities
(b) A floating charge over all its other dssets. ey 10,852 12,196 316 7.535
718,109 976,846 649,903 902850

Notwithstanding the following, the Debenture shall not be deemed o include the
following real property within its remit:

() Registered al Volume 1489 Folio 647 in the Registered Book of Titles; and
{d) Registered at Volume 1489 Folio 648 in the Registered Book of Titles.

{i1) An assignment of insurance policy over stock-in-trade;

(iii) An assignment of insurance policy relating business impact and consequential
losses: and

(iv) Any other security required by the Lenders of either the Borrower, an Affiliate
andfor other party.

Loans (h)-(j) are substantially secured by the following: -

(i} First legal mortgage over commercial property located at 8-10 Brome Close,
Liwdie Gardens, Kingston 20, Saint Andrew registered at Volume 1489 Folio 647
and 643 in the name of Derrimon Trading Company Limited stamped 1o cover
S50M and $55M.

(11} First Demand Debenture over the fixed and floating assets present and future of
Dermimon Trading Company Limited stamped to cover $777.5M and assignment
of Insurance over Stock-In=Trade in the sum of 3330M.

(it pAssignment of Business Impact § Consegquential Loss Insurance in the sum of
SAB0OM,

(iv)Second Demand Debenture over the fixed and Moating assets present and future of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited stamped to cover $435M.

() Third Demand Debenture over the fixed and Moating assels present and future of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited stamped to cover $21M.

(vi)Third Demand Debenmure over the fixed and floating asseis present and future of
Derrimon Trading Company Limited stamped to cover $100M.

Loans {m) and (n} are substantially secured by the following: -
(i} Promissory note for the sum of $10.75M at 9.75% per annum
(i) Letter of undertaking and Liens in favour of JN Bank Limited for a Shacman X9
Flatbed Truck Chassis # BOMOS and 20018 Shacman L300 Steel Body Truck
Chassis # X003 105,
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20. Short-term loans 20, Short-term loans {continuned )
The Group The Company (2) This loan, which is short term loan facility is denominated in Jamaican dollars was
received in October 2020 is unsecured, attracts interest al 8% per annum and is repayable
2020 2019 2020 2019 within 90 days. Interest on loan is paid monthly and principal 1s due upon maturity.
$'000 $'000 $'000 000
Sagicor Bank Jamaica (N This loan, which 15 a repurchase agreement 15 denominated in Jamaican dollars was
Limited {a) 200, 000) - 200,000 - received in October 2020. The Repurchase agreement will be purchased at a rate of 1.75%
Sagicor Bank Jamaica above the sales price. Each Repurchase agreement will be for a maximum of 3 months,
Limited (b) 55,000 55,000 35,000 55,000 with the option to roll each contract every three months for a period not exceeding 12
Jamaica Moncy Market months. The security shall include inventories owned in the warchouse under the
Bank Limited () 41,200 - 41,200 - Repurchase agreement plus 5% margin of additional inventories assigned to the purchase
Barita Investments Limited () 300,000 - 300,000 - and replenish with new stock every three months.
Barita Investments Limited te) 250,000 - 250,000 - (g) This loan, which is short term loan facility is denominated in Jamaican dollars was
5?3-’_"“5 Credit Investments received in December 2020, attracts interest at 11.5% per annum and is repayable within
Limited ) (0 184,813 430,000 184,813 430,000 12 months. Interest on loan is paid monthly and principal is due upon maturity.
National Commercial Bank
Jamaica Limited (&) 25,000 - 25,000 -
Cther : 1,316 - . 21. Bank overdraft

1,056,013 336,316 1.056,013 335,000

Bank overdraft represents cheques drawn by the company yet (o be presented to bank.

(a) This loan, which is an unsecured term loan Facility is denominated in Jamaican dollars
was received Apnl 2020, attracts interest at 8.75% per annum and is repayable within 12
months,

(b} This loan, which is denominated in Jamaican dollars, represents a Stand-by Letter of
Credit, expire upon the bank giving notice to the beneficiaries of the Instruments. The
borrower is required to pay immediately in the event that the Bank is required to pay
under the terms of the lemers 1ssued. Interest on loan is paid monthly and the pnncipal is
due upon maturity.

ic) This loan is a Revolving Line of Credit, which was received in May 2019 is unsecured,
altracts interest at 7.75% per annum and is repayvable within 12 months,

(d) This loan, which is short term loan facility is demominated in Jamamican dollars was
received in Movember 2020 is unsecured, altracts imterest at 8% per annum amnd was
repayable within 90 days. Interest on loan is paid monthly and principal is due upon
TATUriy.
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11. Revenue Z4. Expenses by nature
Revenue represents the price of goods sold or services rendered to customers, and is stated net The Group The Company
of discounts and allowances and General Consumplion Tax., 2020 2019 2020 019
$'000 $000 £ 000 000
ASSELs 188,254 06,618 182,854 918
The Group The Company Audit fee 8,275 6,628 4418 4,200
Bank charges 5,854 . - -
2020 2019 2020 2019 Depreciation 48,312 67,088 32,244 51,967
"0 5700 £ 000 000 Directors fees 1,630 1,275 L] T
Mwnﬁing _-rlpm 7 Dvinations ]1]'” - - -
Rental from warchouse 9006 7179 9916 179 Dues and subscriptions 3138 ] ] )
enta ATCIMIUSE space 30 60} 30 640 Foreign exchange loss . 474 . .
Interest income 31,043 1,742 240 833 = Fines and penaltics 15 . . -
) Insurance 53,901 46,716 38204 40,897
COVID-19 lease concession 30,204 -
_ , 30,204 : Lease short term value 14,700 3,082 12,783 -
Other mﬂﬁ}]";gﬂ“ Muotor vehicle expense 13,593 30,101 10,019 £,990
proceeds, ebts recovered Oifice expenses 40,881 49,713 39,088 41,597
97 856 37,767 90 097 26,864 Professional fees 96,775 54,739 67,387 48,548
Repairs and maintenance 32,700 40,491 30,091 35,343
Staff costs (Mote 26) 606,581 T13,586 506,570 619237
Security 57,785 39,003 36,066 37,366
Travelling and entertainment 15,642 21413 16,294 10,279
Utilities 126,115 113,733 119,432 108,329
1,424 8642 1,279,414 1.20M3, 285 198,451
Selling and distribution 418,625 408,265 410,182 404 861
Finance costs, net (Note 27) 384,490 283,196 399440 297 576
Cosi of sales 10,294,801 10,370,183 0,483,271 9,604,914

12522778 12341058 11499178 11,409,802
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25, Orperating profit
In armiving at the operating profit, the following have been charged: -
The Group The Company
22 2019 202 2019
LRI £ 000 S0 LRI
Auditors” remuneration £.275 6,628 4418 4,200
Amomization of right-of-use
assels 188,254 0618 182,854 0918
Expected credit loss 37,799 29,335 35,690 29,335
Depreciation 48,312 67,088 32,244 51,967
Directors’ emoluments:
- Fec 1630 1275 830 780
- Management remuneration
{included in stafl cosis) Oy, 198 85448 52,342 48,927
Staff costs (Note 26) 696,58 1 713,586 596,570 619,237
2. Stall costs
The Group The Company
20024 20019 20020 2019
LRI 57w 5000 000
Wages and salaries 02,369 301,895 423,582 424,167
Stamstory contributions 47 594 41,550 42,372 36,245
Staff welfare 86,612 08,493 T4.810 EL1TT
Contract services and other 59 T T1,648 55 806 T1.648
H96,581 T13,586 506,570 619,237

27. Finance costs, net

Inferest expense
Foreign exchange loss; net
Lease interest expense

The Group o The Company
2020 e 020 2019
£'000 £'000 000 000
236,891 204,636 248,057 219,017

34,241 - 64,292 -
113,358 78,560 87,091 T8.559
384,490 283,196 399,440 297,576
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28. Taxation

() Taxaton is compuled on the profit for the vear adjusted for mxation purposes and

COmprises:
The Group The Company

2020 201% 2020 2019

$°000 7000 7000 £°000
Income tax at 25% 108,060 B3408 E2.833 55,086
Income tax at 15% 2,193 - 2,193 -
Remission of income tax at
S5 (2019-30%) (52,0800 (41,704) (41.417) (27.543)
Defermed tax assets (Note 10) (14,073) 1.214 (158,586) (5}

44, 1000 43,018 24,723 27538

(b) The taxation charged in the statement of comprehensive income differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the appropriate income tax rate:

Page 6%
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The Group The Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
000 000 5000 7000
Profit hefore taxation 355,189 345,726 250,367 254,940
Tax calculated at the appropriate
rale B7.281 86431 61.129 63,735
Adjusted for the effects of: -
Depreciation and capatal
adjustments (B4) (15.219) - (11.715)
Expenses not allowed for
Iax purposes &M} 20,788 600 14,770
Employers tax credit (223) (3.822) - -
Other charges and
allowances 3,363 - . .
Adjustment for prior vear
lemporary differences 5,243 - 4411
Adjustment for the effect of
remission of tax (52,080 (44,560) (41,417) (39,252)
44,100 43018 24723 27538
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28. Taxation (continued)

(cy Remission of Income Tax

Derrimen Trading Company Limited (DTCL) is listed on the Junior Market of the
Jamaica Stoeck Exchange, effective December 17, 20013, and under the Income Tax
Act (Jamaica Stock Exchange Junior Market) (Remission) Notice 2010, 100% of
income taxes will be remitted by the Minister of Finance during the first five (5) years
of listing, which expired December 17, 2018, DTCL is now required to sccount for
income tax at 30% during the second five {5) vears, from December 17, 2018, 1o
December 16, 2023,

To obtain the remission of income taxes, the following conditions should be adhered
to over the period:

(i) DTCL remains listed for at least 15 years and is not suspended from the JSE for
any breaches of the rules of the JSE;

(1) The Subscnbed Participating Voung Share Capital of DTCL does nol exceed
5300 million; and

(1) DTCL has at least 30 Participating Voung Shareholders. The fNinancial statements
have been prepared on the basis that DTCL will have the full benefit of the tax
remissions. The period is as follows:

=Years | o 5 (December 17, 200 3- December 16, 2008) = 1005
-Years 6 1w 10 (December 17, 2018- December 16, 2023) - 50%

DTCL’s subsidiary, CFFL also benefits from tax remission effective October 2, 2003,
the Company's shares were listed on the Junior Market of the ISE. Effective Dctober

3, 2018, the 100F% remission status expired and CFFL is now subject to Income Tax at
50% for the yvear ended December 31, 2018, The Company is entitled to a remission
of income taxes for (10) ten years in the following proportion:

=Period October 3, 2003 = October 2, 2008 - 100% of standard rate,
=Period October 3, 2018 = October 2, 2023 = 530% of standard rate,
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29, Sepment financial information 30, Earnings per share

Management has determined the operating segments based on the repors reviewed by the
Chief Executive Officer that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group operates three (3) segments. Two (2) segments are exposed to similar risks as they
both sell household and grocery products and the third segment, manufactures Mavours and
fragrances and wooden products. The principal divisions are:

(i) Distribution- distnbution of MNestle household products, Sun Powder Detergents and bulk
food products and chilled and ambient beverages.

(i) Wholesale and retail - operation of seven (7) outlets, six (6) trading under the name Sampars
Cash and Carry and Sampars Cutlets and the other under the name Select Grocers,

The distribution hub, along with four (4) oatlets is located in Kingston and Saint Andrew,
and the other three (3) locations ane inorural Jamaici

(iii) Other operations - manufaciurers of flavours and fragrances, wooden palleis and by

Profit per stock unit ("EPS") is computed by dividing the profit attnbutable 1o stockholders of
the parent of 279,834,000 (2019: 5200, 744 0007 by the weighted average number of ordinary
stock units in issue during the year, numbering 2,733,360,670 (20009: 2,733, 360,670,

31, Contingent liabilities and commitments

L Inthe normal course of business, the Group is subject o various claims, disputes and
legal procesdings, which occur as pant of the normal course of business. Provision is
made for such matters when, in the opinion of management and its legal advisors, il
15 probable that a payment will be made by the Group and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. In respect of claims asserted against the Group, which,
according 1o the principles outlined above, have not been provided for, management
is of the opinion that such claims are either without mernt, can be successfully
defended or will result in exposure to the Growp which is immaterial to both the
financial position and financial performance.

The Group and Company’s atormeys that routinely sct on behalf of the Group, by letter

products of wood. dated February 18, 2021, reported with regards 1o the Company’s year ended 31
2020 December 2020, as follows:
VWhaolesale and (ther
Distribution Hetail Operations  Eliminations Group

® They were nod aware of any outstanding judgment, settlement or claim.

] S0 $'000 $000 S0 AL ® They were not aware of any guaraniees of indebtedness to others made by the
Revenue from exizrmal 3 |
customers 6,255,513 5395148 1,126,803 - 12777464 Company, not p“h]""l_y disclosed.
. #*  They hold no trust monies on behall of the Company,

Operating profit 276,303 373,504 104,488 (14.616) 739,679 . . L
Assels 4855 565 3 (44,023 LOBL3T3 (5652477 7415814 # They are aware of one pending lingation aganst the company for a personal injury
Liabilitics 4467010 1056556 315,543 (27232)  SRIETT claim by an independent contractor.
Capital expenditure 67.076 6,518 20,027 - 102,621 _
Deprociation 13084 18,764 16,464 . 483172 . Management reported that as at 31 December 2020, the Company had capital
Finance costafincome), mel 221,734 177,702 {14.950) ) 184,490 commitments of $569,000,000 (2019 - $NIL).

L. As at 31 December 2020, as far as the Board of Directors of the Company are awarne,

2018 there were no significant legal claims threatened against the Company.

Wholesale and ~ Oiher
Distribution Retail  Operations  Eliminations  Group

£ 000 $000 SO0 $'000 §000
Revenue from exiermal
cuslomers 6,459,327 5,178,551 1,011,139 12,649,017
Opersting profit 313,855 23 88,838 (124320 628922
Assels 3425565 2001 064 92,395 (5463400  5.7R2.684
Liabilities 2,705,303 15380 215045 9,224, 4449172
Capital expenditure 44,372 35,852 4,043
Depreciation 14410 : 15,120 67,088
Finance costaf{inconmse). el 167,929 129,647 {14,380 253,196
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32, Dividends 33, Coronavirus (Covid-19)
2020 2019 Thie daily restrictions by way of curfews, closure of schools, hotels and the entemainment
$°000 7000 sectors resulted in a reduction of trade in the beverage segment of our business. Year over
Declared and paid at $0.012 (20019:- year, we experienced a 40% reduction in revenue and the stimulation of sales through offenng
$0.010) cent per share 32,800 27.334 of deals and various pull programs negatively impacted the margins. We reacted by
Total dividends 1o shareholders 32,800 27,334 intraducing various inmovative measures during the last quarter of the financial year which

33, Coronavirus (Covid-19)

The novel Coronavirus (Covid-19) outbreak was declared a global pandemic in March 2020
by the World Health Organisation. The pandemic and the measures to control its human
impact have resulied in the disruption of imernational and local economic activilies,
commerce, business operations and assets prices. The government implemented a number of
measures aimed at redecing the spread of the virws, including nightly curfews, home
quarantine for citizens of a specific age and restrictions on the number of persons in public
gathering. These restrictions have had adverse economic effects on the operations of many
stakeholders,

The Management of Dermimon Trading Company Limited (the Company) introduced various
measures during the early stage of the pandemic in order to minimize or mitigate any
impending impact of the virus, Additionally, the Company adopted the recommended
protecols and implemented new procedures peared al minimizing exposures and contact
spreading. During the year, none of our employees were infeciad,

The Company was able to quickly respond by introducing 24 hours packaging and delivery of
onling packages, preparation of care packages for the Private Sector of Jamaica initiative,
Charitable Organization and Foundations.

The Company continues to source commadities from various markets in different paris of the
World for its Distribution business. Many of these countries have been negatively impacted
by Covid-19 and despite the challenges faced and the restrictions imposed, our operations
have not been significantly impacted from a supply chain perspective. We were proactive in
our planning and ensured the Asian effect was incorporated resulling in aggressive onderng of
some of our core commaodities. Management was able 1o leverage its networks and business
relationships to ensure that there was no impact on the business operations.

resulted in the stability of the Division®s revenue and profitabality.

The Retail Division and Online platform operating through our supermarkets and webstore
have positively impacted profitability and sales during this pandemic. Despite the closure of
many schools, offices, small shops, restauramts and the catering sector, this segment of the
business grew significantly and performed profitably, Our online platform peaked at a growth
rate of 300% during the early stage of the pandemic and stabilized inio consistent growth
thereafter.

Based on management assessmient, the significance of the impact of Covid-19 on our
operation was mitigated as a result of all aforementioned measures which were undertaken in
a timely manmer, this is evidenced by the increase in the demand for our offerings during the

reporting year.

Management further confirms the Company as a poing concemn as il is mol expected o be
significantly impacted in a negative way by the Covid-19 pandemic.

M. Related party transactions
Parties are considersd to be related if one panty has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Related party transactions and balances are recognised and disclosed below for the following:

() Enterprises over which a substantial interest in the voting power is owned by a key
management personnel, including directors and officers and close members of families;
0

(b} Enterprises over which such a person, in {a) above, 15 able to exercise significant
influence, This includes enterprises owned by directors or major shareholders of the

reporting enterprse and enerprises that have a member of key management in commaon
with the company.,

The following was {credited vdebited 1o the statement of comprehensive income:

The Group The Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
5 s 5 1
Dividend income = = 14614 12029
Directors’ fees 1,630 1.275 830 TEO
Management remuneration 06, 198 83448 22,342 45,927
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35, Subsequent event

As part of the Company’s Financial Management Strategy, the Board of Directors approved
an Additional Public Offer; as per its Prospectus, which was approved and registered on
Decembser 14, 2020 by the Financial Services Commission and the Jamaica Stock Exchange.

The Invitation once fully subscribed was expecied to generate gross proceeds of
approximately J53.50 billion, after J5205.25 million in transaction costs would result in net
proceeds of 153.29 billion. If the option to upsize was fully exercised, the gross proceeds
would further increase by a maximum of 1572312 million resulting in a total gross proceeds
of 154.01 ballion.

In January 2021, Dernmen Trading Company Limited announced that, duee 1o excess demand,
the Board of Directors exercised its option to up-size the Invitation made in its APO
Prospectus, Accordingly, an sdditonal 301,301,069 in New Ordinary Shares were made
available. The offer was closed on January 26, 2021.

The Company will use the proceeds for main purposes as follows: -

* Acquisition of a Supermarket localed in Brooklyn, New York.
¢ Construction of a Supermarket located at Millennium Mall, Curatoe Hill, Clarendon.
* Liguidation of certain long and short term debt.
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Form of Proxy

|/WE'
of
being a sh(]reholder(s) of DERRIMON TRADING COMPANY LIMITED HEREBY APPOINT:
of or failing
him/her of

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
on 27th day of October 2021 at 10:00am at The Knutsford Court Hotel and at any adjournment thereof, to vote
for me/us and in my/our name for the said resolutions (either with or without modification, as my/our Proxy
may approve) or against the said resolutions as hereby indicated.

| desire this form to be used as follows? (unless directed by the proxy will vote as he sees fit):

Resolution No. FOR AGAINST

Ordinary Business

1 To receive the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020.
2a To re-appoint Derrick Cotterell to the Board of Directors.

2b To re-appoint Earl Richards to the Board of Directors.

2c To re-appoint Alexander Williams to the Board of Directors.

To fix the remuneration of the Directors.

4 To re-appoint the Auditors and to fix their remuneration.
Signed: Siged?®
Dated this ......... day of , 2021
Notes

1. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his place.
Such proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. If the appointer is a corporation, this form must be under its common seal or under the hand of some officer or
attorney duly authorised in that behalf.

3. Any alteration made in this Form of Proxy should be initialed by the person who signs it.

4. Amember must lodge his Form of Proxy with the Secretary at 235 Marcus Garvey Drive, Kingston 11, Jamaica not less
than 48 hours before the Meeting, but if not so lodged it may be handed to the Chairman of the Meeting.

5. In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior joint holder who tenders a vote whether in person or by proxy will be
accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders(s), and for this purpose seniority will be determined
by the order in which the names appear in the books of the Company.

6. If this form is returned without any indication as to how the person appointed proxy shall vote, he will exercise his
discretion as to how he votes or whether he abstains from voting.

7. The person to whom this Proxy is given need not be a holder of shares in the Company but must attend the
Meeting in person to represent you.

1. Full name and address to be inserted in Block Capitals.
2. Please indicate with an X in the spaces how you wish your vote to be cast.
3.To be used if under common seal by a corporation.
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